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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Welcome to this,

          3  today's hearing of the City Council's Committee on

          4  Transportation.  My name's John Liu.  I have the

          5  privilege of Chairing this Committee. We've convened

          6  to consider, for the first time, Intro. Number 98. A

          7  legislative initiative to prohibit the sale, lease,

          8  rental, or operation of motorized scooters in the

          9  City of New York.

         10                 This hearing comes in response to a

         11  proliferation of makeshift scooters on City streets

         12  and sidewalks.  There is presented a clear and

         13  immediate danger to pedestrians, motorists, as well

         14  as the environment.  The devices at use are

         15  generally non- motorized -- well, scooters,

         16  conventional scooters that originally were never

         17  motorized and, in fact, when many of us were kids,

         18  who played with these scooters and got around on

         19  them a little bit.

         20                 Now, these kids' scooters have become

         21  motorized and whereas several years ago they may

         22  have cost upwards of thousands of dollars, they can

         23  now be found at local stores for as little as a

         24  hundred bucks, or even less sometimes, if you

         25  believe the Pep Boy advertisements that appear in
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          2  our newspapers on Sundays, every single week.

          3                 So, the problem that we're looking to

          4  address is the fact that not only are these, have

          5  these scooters become motorized, but they have

          6  become so inexpensive as to be within the reach of

          7  many adolescents and teenagers.  These motorized

          8  scooters are now frequently souped up and advertised

          9  as such, so that they can travel at speeds topping

         10  out as much as 40 miles per hour.  They also

         11  typically emit dangerous levels of hazardous toxins

         12  into the air, and both their potential speeds and

         13  their uncontrolled emissions present grave dangers

         14  and concerns to this Committee.

         15                 It's important to note that these

         16  modified devices that our legislation terms as

         17  motorized scooters are, in fact, already illegal to

         18  operate on the City's streets and sidewalks and all

         19  other public places.  It is already illegal.  While

         20  these devices fall into the New York State

         21  Legislature's statutory definition of what a motor

         22  vehicle is, they do not fall into any of the

         23  classifications of the types of motor vehicles that

         24  may be registered with the New York State Department

         25  of Motor Vehicles. Because these motorized scooters
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          2  may not be registered with the DMV, they, therefore,

          3  may not be operated, pursuant to State Law, in any

          4  public space.

          5                 The problem is, of course, that

          6  despite the fact that State Law makes these devices

          7  illegal, they are all over our City, and worse yet,

          8  they are most often being operated by adolescents

          9  and teenagers.  One our government's

         10  responsibilities is to protect the public,

         11  especially our youth.  It is for this reason, along

         12  with the environmental issues presented by motorized

         13  scooters, that Intro. Number 98 seeks not only to

         14  prohibit the use of motorized scooters in the City,

         15  but also their sale, lease or rental.  If their

         16  current status as illegal to use is not enough to

         17  prevent their proliferation in New York City, we

         18  must take measures to cut off their supply.

         19                 As I stated before, this is the first

         20  hearing on this bill.  We will not be voting on it

         21  today.  There are many people who wish to speak to

         22  this issue in the Chambers today, and many

         23  viewpoints to be heard.  We are looking at this with

         24  an open mind, and we will hear everybody, all the

         25  opinions that people have to offer.  This bill has
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          2  been introduced by our esteemed colleague, Council

          3  Member McMahon, as well as Council Member Peter

          4  Vallone, Jr.  Both of them have been pushing for

          5  this hearing as soon as possible, and it is timely

          6  since Spring is upon us and as the weather gets

          7  warmer, so will the scooters get warmed up.

          8                 At this point, I'd like to turn the

          9  floor over to my colleague, Council Member McMahon,

         10  for his opening statements. But, just before he does

         11  so, let me introduce the Members of this Committee,

         12  Council Member Miguel Martinez from Manhattan,

         13  Council Member Joe Addabbo from Queens, and we are

         14  also joined by Council Member Peter Vallone.

         15  Council Member McMahon.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  Thank you

         17  Mr. Chairman. I want to thank you and also Mitchell

         18  Schwartz, who helped prepare for this meeting and

         19  Carmine Cognetta, whose serving in his stead, for

         20  putting together this hearing on what, at first

         21  blush, may seem like a very mundane issue, is one

         22  that we believe, and this is really something I know

         23  that many of the Council Members feel very

         24  passionately about.  I know Council Member Vallone

         25  and Council Member Addabbo, and Council Member
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          2  Martinez, as well.

          3                 We've spoken about this at length in

          4  the Council because we believe that the recent

          5  really plague- like swarming of these devices in our

          6  districts pose two major problems.  First and

          7  foremost, is the health and safety of our children.

          8  Because, as you pointed out Mr. Chairman,

          9  invariably, these devices are being used by children

         10  and because they have become so cheap, they are so

         11  readily accessible.

         12                 To have children driving around at 30

         13  or 40 miles an hour on scooters, in a City of eight

         14  million people, with tractor trailers and other

         15  types of vehicles on the road, that can't even see

         16  these things, is just unacceptable.  So, that's why

         17  we think that this is really a matter, this is not

         18  just a mundane matter, this is a matter of life and

         19  death.

         20                 In the year 2000, there were nearly

         21  5,000 emergency room visits in the country because

         22  of scooter- related incidents.  But, as the Chairman

         23  pointed out, at that time, these scooters cost

         24  hundreds and hundreds of dollars and now they cost

         25  as little at $95.00 or $97.00, really a small
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          2  amount, and they're readily accessible.  I want to

          3  look at -- I bet you that those numbers are going up

          4  each and every year.

          5                 Secondly, this has become a major

          6  quality of life issue in the neighborhoods

          7  throughout the City.  School yards and streets are

          8  filled with these things.  They're noisy late at

          9  night and really create an untenable situation for

         10  homeowners and business owners, who really feel like

         11  they're being put upon, sort of like the old west,

         12  where the lawlessness is just a little out of

         13  control, because these children now are traveling,

         14  as I said, at such high rates of speed, become so

         15  mobile, become somewhat brazen and become somewhat

         16  aggressive.  So, this is not a mundane question,

         17  this is a question of quality of life and a question

         18  of life and death.

         19                 We thank you for convening this

         20  hearing Mr. Chairman, and look forward to speaking

         21  with the Administration and all others, to find a

         22  way that we can craft a bill quickly that is both

         23  enforceable, effective, and I believe will save

         24  lives of many children.  So, thank you, Mr.

         25  Chairman.  We look forward to this hearing.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you for

          3  crafting this legislation Council Member McMahon,

          4  and now we have a brief opening from Council Member

          5  Peter Vallone, Jr. As well, who has been pushing

          6  hard for this hearing.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chair, for having this hearing so quickly; and

          9  Mr. McMahon, for your leadership on this issue.

         10  Because, as you both mentioned, as Springtime comes,

         11  so too do the scooters, which means that any day

         12  now, we will start getting the injuries, the

         13  children riding the scooters being injured, the

         14  children playing on the sidewalks getting hit by the

         15  scooters being injured.  We need to stop that.

         16                 I've taken a quick look at the

         17  testimony from both the Consumer Affairs and DOT,

         18  which, to sum it up, basically says that the current

         19  laws are sufficient.  Well, they're not.  If you

         20  speak to the people on the street, they are not.

         21  Either the laws are not sufficient or the City is

         22  not doing enough to enforce them, but we cannot

         23  leave the situation the way it is.

         24                 You can speak to any Council Member,

         25  noise complaints are the number one complaint into
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          2  our district offices, and these scooters comprise

          3  many of those noise complaints.  So, the laws are

          4  either not sufficient or they're not being enforced,

          5  and that's why we're having this hearing.  We cannot

          6  let the situation go on the way it is and so I,

          7  again, commend our Chairman for taking quick action

          8  to resolve this, and hopefully, save some lives.

          9  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         11  Member Vallone.  As we stated before, there are many

         12  people who wish to testify today.  We will start

         13  with the distinguished members of the

         14  Administration, Deputy Commissioner of the New York

         15  City Department of Transportation, David Woloch, and

         16  Pauline Toole, the Assistant Commissioner of the

         17  Department of Consumer Affairs. Good morning.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  Good

         19  morning.  I'm going to -- we're reversing the order.

         20  I'm going to start first. Thank you.  Good morning

         21  Chairman Liu and Members of the Transportation

         22  Committee.  I am Pauline Toole, the Assistant

         23  Commissioner for the Department of Consumer Affairs.

         24  Commissioner Dykstra asked me to thank you for this

         25  opportunity to comment on Intro. 98, which would
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          2  prohibit the sale and use of motor scooters in New

          3  York City.

          4                 We commend the objective of this

          5  legislation, keeping New York City streets clear of

          6  motor scooters, which is, of course, a

          7  transportation policy issue beyond DCA's

          8  jurisdiction.  However, DCA does enforce many point-

          9  of- sale transactions.  It is this Administration's

         10  view that completely banning the sale of motor

         11  scooters in New York City is too far reaching, since

         12  such devices may well be used legally and properly

         13  outside the City limits and on private property

         14  within the City limits.

         15                 This bill would prohibit local stores

         16  from selling the devices for customers seeking them

         17  for legitimate uses.  The City ban may also be in

         18  effectual, since their sale is not banned elsewhere

         19  within the Metropolitan area.  Banning them in New

         20  York City would then just force purchasers to take

         21  their business outside the City.

         22                 DCA currently enforces the Consumer

         23  Protection Law against the sale of scooters within

         24  City limits if the store does not inform the

         25  customer that the use of such scooters is illegal in
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          2  the City.  This is similar to enforcing the Gray

          3  Market Good Laws in electronic stores.  It is

          4  illegal to sell gray market goods, which are

          5  electronic goods that can be used only overseas and

          6  not in the United States, only if it, the store

          7  discloses that fact.  We believe this approach makes

          8  good common sense for consumers and for businesses.

          9  The Administration, therefore, urges that the

         10  Committee not report this bill favorably to the full

         11  Council.  Thank you for this opportunity to comment.

         12    I would be glad to answer your questions.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Good

         14  morning Chairman Liu and Members of the Committee on

         15  Transportation.  My name is David Woloch, and I am

         16  the Deputy Commissioner for External Affairs at the

         17  New York City Department of Transportation.  I'm

         18  pleased to be here this morning and wish to make a

         19  brief statement concerning the use of motorized

         20  scooters and other such devices on the streets and

         21  sidewalks of New York City.

         22                 New York City is home to more than

         23  eight million people who live, work and commute in a

         24  fairly condensed area. The sheer volumes of

         25  pedestrians and vehicles in New York City is far
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          2  greater than elsewhere in the State of New York.  We

          3  are in agreement with the Council that allowing the

          4  operation of motorized scooters or any similar

          5  devices in New York City would jeopardize public

          6  safety, by posing a threat to motorists and

          7  bicyclists, and more importantly, to pedestrians.

          8                 In fact, New York City was recently

          9  cited as the number one walking city in America, a

         10  testament to our safe streets and sidewalks.  It

         11  would not be worth compromising public safety to

         12  accommodate motorized scooters, and accordingly, we

         13  support the current ban on the operation of these

         14  devices on the City's streets and sidewalks, as

         15  prescribed in the current provisions of the New York

         16  State Vehicle and Traffic Law.  So, while we support

         17  the Council's intent, the current provisions in the

         18  VTL address this issue.

         19                 I'd also like to mention that the

         20  Administration is actively lobbying against numerous

         21  bills in Albany that would allow motorized scooters

         22  to be registered and used in New York City.  We've

         23  also been lobbying against the Segway Bill,

         24  specifically by advocating for a New York City

         25  exemption from this legislation, which would allow
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          2  these devices to be operated in the State of New

          3  York.

          4                 Lastly, I'd like to point out that

          5  the definition of a motorized scooter is proposed in

          6  Intro. 98, that is, as a device that may not be

          7  registered with the State Department of Motor

          8  Vehicles, could prove to be problematic should any

          9  of the bills before the State Legislature pass,

         10  allowing motorized scooters to be registered.  Thank

         11  you for the opportunity to be here today and I'd

         12  also be happy to answer any questions at this time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Let me

         14  start with a question for Assistant Commissioner

         15  Toole.  Is the Department of Consumer Affairs urging

         16  us to not favorably consider this bill primarily

         17  because the sales would simply go outside the City?

         18  It seems like that's the primary focus of your

         19  testimony.  I just want to be clear on that.  That

         20  the main reason why the Department of Consumer

         21  Affairs would oppose this bill is because the sales

         22  would simply be taken outside City limits.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  That

         24  is one example.  I think the broader point is that

         25  New York City is a city of commerce and that people
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          2  come here in order to get a good deal on lots of

          3  things, some of which cannot be used in the City,

          4  such as gray market goods.  The scooters fall under

          5  that same kind of category.  So, let's say there's a

          6  New Jersey resident who would like to buy a cheaper

          7  scooter in the City, we don't think that commerce

          8  should be discouraged.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, there are

         10  many other policies within our City that make the

         11  sale of certain items less competitive within our

         12  City, and yet we enact those laws to achieve a

         13  desired public policy within our City.  Take the

         14  example of the cost of cigarettes in the City.  Does

         15  the Department of Consumer Affairs have a position

         16  on whether the additional tax on cigarettes should

         17  have been enacted?  I mean, certainly, it makes

         18  people who live in New Jersey, or even people who

         19  live in New York, more likely to go across the river

         20  to New Jersey to buy their cigarettes.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  No, we

         22  don't have an opinion on that.  It's a tax, it's not

         23  a prohibition of sale, also, it's a clarification.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, if there was a

         25  movement to prohibit the sale of cigarettes, the

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Department of Consumer Affairs wouldn't be in favor

          3  of that?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  Well,

          5  it's not come up before us.  If you wanted to

          6  introduce that, we'd be happy to take a look at it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Council Member

          8  Vallone asks a good question, and he'll have some

          9  more questions, but what if we impose a tax on

         10  scooter sales within the City of New York?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  That

         12  would not be the Department of Consumer Affairs that

         13  would have a point of view on that.  I believe that

         14  would be the City's Office of Management and Budget,

         15  and the State Legislature, as someone points out.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  We have questions

         17  from Council Member Vallone.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you

         19  Mr. Chair. It's an interesting idea if we put, say

         20  100 percent tax on these scooters, and we can serve

         21  two purposes.  Again, your testimony and both of

         22  the, the testimony I just heard says the law is

         23  sufficient as it is.  Well, the law was this way

         24  last year, and it was a huge problem on our streets

         25  last year.  So, if the law stays this way, why
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          2  should the public expect anything different as the

          3  Spring and Summer come around?  I'd like to hear

          4  from both of you on that.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Sure.  I

          6  mean, I think the other way to think about it is if

          7  you create another, if we were to create another law

          8  and the devices are still readily available

          9  everywhere outside of the City, and there would

         10  still be hundreds of devices already out there,

         11  there would, there would still be, still be a

         12  problem.

         13                 People could still get their hands on

         14  the devices. They can get -- there are hundreds of

         15  websites where people can get the devices.  So, I

         16  think, you know, perhaps there is an enforcement

         17  question, but there are laws on the books.  We agree

         18  that we do not want these devices on our streets.

         19  We don't want them on our sidewalks.  We don't want

         20  them in our parks.  But, there are currently, there

         21  are currently illegal.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  We -- first

         23  of all, I'm Chair of the Public Safety Committee,

         24  and I know that our police have had much better

         25  things to do and much more important things to do
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          2  recently than go out and search for scooters and

          3  we're not faulting them for that.  They've been very

          4  busy with anti terrorism patrols and things like

          5  that.  That's why we're taking this action, because

          6  you said people will still go across State lines to

          7  get them, and maybe some will, but most won't.

          8                 If you walks the streets of Astoria

          9  on Steinway (phonetic) Street, and you see these

         10  scooters out in front of every one of these novelty

         11  stores.  No one can convince me that their

         12  availability right there on Steinway Street is not

         13  going to entice children and encourage children to

         14  buy, be buying these things and using them on the

         15  streets, as opposed to traveling out of State to get

         16  them and bringing them back in.

         17                 I think that's one way, we think that

         18  this is one way to lower the presence, the amount of

         19  these, lower the amount of these things on the

         20  streets by making them less available, less enticing

         21  by taking them off the streets of the City, where

         22  they're being sold.  Again, I haven't heard anything

         23  that's going to make any difference this year from

         24  the City, and that's why the City Council needs to

         25  act, to change these laws to make them less
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          2  available.  And to allow, by the way, the police are

          3  not coming today, as far as I know.  But, I'm told

          4  by some police officers that they don't seize these

          5  motorcycle, these scooters because they are legal to

          6  be used on private property, so they give them back.

          7                 Under this law, I would assume they

          8  could seize these scooters and not give them back,

          9  which would also help to not have the same kid on

         10  the street the next day with the scooter, especially

         11  if they have to spend a lot of money to buy another

         12  one.  Your analogy, the gray market goods, I just

         13  don't see it.  There's no problem with gray market

         14  goods on our sidewalks hurting children.  There's a

         15  problem with scooters on our sidewalks and it's a

         16  problem with enforcement.  So, I have to disagree

         17  that the laws, at present, are sufficient and I'm

         18  sorry you guys don't feel the same way.  Thanks.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         20  Member Vallone.  Council Member McMahon.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  Thank you

         22  Mr. Chairman. I join in those sentiments from

         23  Council Member Vallone and I'll go further and say

         24  that I'm flabbergasted by what I just heard here

         25  this morning.  Ms. Toole, maybe I misunderstood.
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          2  Are you from the Department of Consumer Affairs or

          3  from the Chamber of Commerce?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  If

          5  that was a serious question Councilman, I'm from the

          6  City's Department of Consumer Affairs.  We enforce

          7  the Consumer Protection Law and we already enforce

          8  point- of- sale transactions.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  But you

         10  spoke more about encouraging business and the

         11  economy, and it would seem to me that the mission of

         12  the Department of Consumer Affairs is consumer

         13  safety, and making sure that products that are sold

         14  in the City of New York are safe and that these laws

         15  are enforced.

         16                 Your testimony spoke -- you didn't

         17  speak at all about the safety of these things.  You

         18  didn't provide us with any information as to the

         19  number of accidents or the number of incidents

         20  involving these things.  I thought that your agency

         21  would be the ones who would come in and say, you

         22  know what? This is a consumer safety issue.  This is

         23  about safety of our children, about safety of our

         24  pedestrians, and all you spoke about was whether or

         25  not New York should be a great marketplace for these
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          2  totally absurd and ridiculous devices.  I don't

          3  understand that.

          4                 Isn't it correct that there are laws

          5  that the -- we outlaw certain things in this City.

          6  Let's say, heating by kerosene stoves, right?  Are

          7  you saying that because these things can be sold in

          8  other jurisdictions, that we shouldn't enforce the

          9  law here and that we should be a good marketplace

         10  for things that can pose a public safety threat?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  No

         12  sir.  I think you misunderstood my comments.  My

         13  comment went to the point of sale issue, and the

         14  Department of Consumer Affairs actually serves a

         15  dual constituency.  One is to license and regulate

         16  businesses and create an honest marketplace in which

         17  consumers can trust.  The other is to protect

         18  consumer safety.  The Consumer Product Safety Board

         19  is the institution that looks at the safety of

         20  devices.  That's not us.

         21                 Finally, the use of these scooters is

         22  illegal on the City's streets, and so that is not an

         23  area where the Department of Consumer Affairs plays

         24  a role.  We do play a role at the point of sale and

         25  we have conducted a variety of enforcement
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          2  initiatives to ensure that if the scooters are being

          3  sold, that it is disclosed to the purchaser that

          4  they are illegal to be used on the City's streets.

          5  If that is not disclosed, it's a violation of the

          6  City's Consumer Protection Law, and we issue a

          7  violation.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  Now, have

          9  you provided us with any statistics on those

         10  enforcement actions?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  No

         12  sir, but I would be happy to.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  I would

         14  appreciate that, and I would certainly think that

         15  for a hearing of this nature to deal on this topic,

         16  that that is something that would be contemplated by

         17  the Department to provide with the Council.  Do you

         18  have an opinion as to whether or not these devices

         19  should be legal on private property?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  No

         21  sir.  That, I think, would be a Department of

         22  Transportation question.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  Do you see

         24  the inherent problem when something is legal on

         25  public property, private property and illegal on
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          2  public property?  Let me, read, say if I got that

          3  right.  Do you see a problem when a device like this

          4  can be legal on private property, but illegal on

          5  public property?  Do you see a problem in terms of

          6  enforcement?  Do you see a problem in terms of

          7  statistics and safety when that condition exists?

          8  And, I'll give you an example.  A kid has got one of

          9  these things in his or her driveway, or in the

         10  parking lot of a store or whatever, and off they go

         11  onto the City street and the sidewalk. You don't see

         12  a problem with enforcement when that situation

         13  occurs?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  You're

         15  asking me to go beyond the scope of my Department's

         16  work, which is the enforcement of the sale.  The

         17  enforcement on the City streets, I have to say,

         18  would best be asked to the Department of

         19  Transportation or the City's police department.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  If I

         21  could just jump, jump in.  In terms of the question

         22  of public property versus private property, one of

         23  the items that would probably be covered by the bill

         24   -- I know this wasn't the intent of the bill, but

         25  as its written now, would be golf carts.  And, just
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          2  to use that as an example.  We wouldn't necessarily

          3  want those on City streets, but certainly they're

          4  allowed on private property.  There's equipment used

          5  in warehouses that we wouldn't necessarily want

          6  operating on private, on public streets, but

          7  certainly is allowed on private property.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  But that

          9  wasn't your, your testimony wasn't, look, this is a

         10  really good bill and it addresses a problem that is

         11  really a great concern to the Department and we

         12  agree that we've got to get these things out of the

         13  City completely.  There are some little problems

         14  that we see, let's carve out some legislation to

         15  together to make that happen. That's not what you

         16  said.  What you said was, State law covers this,

         17  City law covers it, just leave it the way it is.

         18  Right? That's basically what you said to us.

         19                 But, I have to tell you, if you talk

         20  to a police officer, which I wish you guys had

         21  spoken to the police department in terms of

         22  enforcement before coming here, what they say is,

         23  look, we chase these kids, they get onto the their

         24  own, into their own backyards, there's nothing we

         25  can do.  We would love to be able to take the things
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          2  away.  So, help us find, draft a bill that does that

          3   --

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  -- Just

          5  a --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  -- But

          7  that's, go ahead, I'm sorry.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Just one

          9  point of clarification, we, in fact, did speak with

         10  the police department about the issue.  They do

         11  impound the devices when they find a juvenile whose

         12  using one.  I think, clearly, you know the point

         13  that the price is dropping is of concern.  You know,

         14  the practice of impounding the devices obviously has

         15  more of a deterrent effect, the higher the price is.

         16    So, I think that is a concern. But, they do, in

         17  fact, impound them.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  If I may,

         19  they impound them and they give them back when the

         20  parents come to the precincts.  At least, it's on a

         21  precinct by precinct level.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  Right.  And,

         23  I can tell you that there is such confusion on their

         24  parts that they don't know what to, quite what to do

         25  with them, and they return them without a fine, and
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          2  what we're trying to do is to make it clear. You

          3  see, this confusion here, is it legal to have it or

          4  isn't it legal to have it?  Is it registered under

          5  State law, isn't it registered under State law?  I

          6  am on private property, am I on public property?

          7                 The point here is, no one can give me

          8  a good valid reason to put one of these devices into

          9  the hands of a 14 year old, which a 14 year- old can

         10  now do, can walk into one of these stores that

         11  advertises, if you pick up a Sunday paper, there are

         12  whole magazines or supplements dedicated to these

         13  things.  A 14 year- old can go into a store, and buy

         14  these things, fill it up with gas, and off they go

         15  riding down the street.  No one can tell me that

         16  that's what we want.

         17                 So, what I want to know from the

         18  Administration is, where is the law or what is the

         19  language that will allow us to craft a bill that

         20  will reach the goal that we all seek, and not to

         21  hear that, well, the law's fine and don't worry

         22  about it. Because, it's not fine, and we are worried

         23  about it and what's going to happen is a kid is

         24  going to be killed on one of these things and then

         25  we're all going to rush in here and say, oh, you
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          2  know, now we have to do something.  Why don't we

          3  solve the problem before somebody gets killed.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

          5  we would agree that nobody wants to sit around and

          6  ignore, ignore the issue.  But, I think the point

          7  is, within, within the framework of current law,

          8  whether it's education, whether it's on the

          9  enforcement side.  I'm sure there's, there's more we

         10  can do.  I'm sure that there's always more you can

         11  do, and we'd be happy to work with the Council on

         12  that.

         13                 I'd also add that one potential value

         14  in legislation is that it is always possible that

         15  something changes in Albany that would allow the

         16  devices or one, a type of device that is within this

         17  universe, that a law will be passed in Albany that

         18  would allow them in the City, we would be greatly

         19  concerned by that.

         20                 Perhaps, one value of local

         21  legislation would be to take a step, sort of a

         22  pre-emptive measure to make sure that if something

         23  like that were to happen in Albany, that those

         24  devices would not be allowed, allowed in the City.

         25  So, I don't think we're suggesting that any

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  legislation within this arena is out of the

          3  question, nor are we suggesting that this is a, an

          4  issue that we shouldn't be concerned about, and that

          5  we shouldn't be working together on  I think --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  -- So,

          7  commit.  Come on, you sound like the politician now.

          8    Commit.  Isn't it correct that the Administration

          9  does not want these devices on our public streets

         10  and our public walkways and our parks, everything?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         12  Absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  Okay.  So,

         14  how are we going to get to the point where we don't

         15  have that?  What are we going to do to stop it?  Are

         16  you saying that by getting enforcement of the

         17  existing law is going to do it? Because it's not

         18  doing it.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I'm

         20  sure, like lots of issues, there's more that can be

         21  done on, from an education standpoint and from an

         22  enforcement standpoint.  Again, we're happy to work

         23  with the Council on that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  Thank you

         25  Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

          3  Member McMahon.  We have questions from Council

          4  Member Addabbo.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you

          6  very much Mr. Chairman.  Assistant Commissioner,

          7  Deputy Commissioner, thank you very much for your

          8  time and testimony today.  I'd like to think that we

          9  are dealing with common ground here, in the sense

         10  that we all believe that this is a severe safety

         11  issue in the City, and that we are taking steps to

         12  look to improve it.

         13                 I could you tell you, in my district,

         14  I have a serious problem with these scooters, that

         15  after purchase, they are being altered so they can

         16  go faster.  Is the Administration aware that this is

         17  also a problem that exists as well with these

         18  scooters?  Have you heard of anything throughout the

         19  City that this is being done? Or, because I don't

         20  think it's only pertinent to my district.  I am sure

         21  that this is an issue that's going to be rising as

         22  these scooters become more accessible.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Right.

         24  I have not, per se, but it's --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  -- Okay.
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          2  But, I'll tell you for a fact --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  -- Not

          4  that surprising --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  -- I'll tell

          6  you for a fact that it's going on in my district,

          7  that they are being, because they're gas- powered,

          8  they're being altered so they can go faster.  So, as

          9  they become more accessible, this is going to be

         10  obviously an increasing issue as well.

         11                 I have not sponsored, I have not

         12  joined on to this piece of legislation because,

         13  although I believe this is an important issue, I,

         14  again, I'm not sure if this is the, if this piece of

         15  legislation is the right way to go.  I am close to

         16  adding my name to this, but, again, I'd like to hear

         17  from the Administration.  I don't think you have

         18  sold me on the fact that the Administration is

         19  enforcing it as much as they could have. Without

         20  coming with statistics today, I think is damaging.

         21                 Your relationship with NYPD, do you

         22  have any contact with them in enforcing it?  Do you

         23  have any statistics, I know the police department is

         24  not here today, but do you have any information

         25  regarding the enforcement?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I have

          3  information in terms of how they do enforcement.  I

          4  don't have the statistics.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  I mean, in a

          6  hearing like this, I think that's helpful.  Consumer

          7  Protection Law, Vehicle Traffic Laws, there's no

          8  statistics today, is there?  We have nothing on

          9  enforcement.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  That's

         11  right, but we'll be happy to follow- up and provide

         12  you with our statistics, which don't, which will be

         13  on the point of sale issues.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  And,

         15  I'm, while you pointed out that the police

         16  department isn't here today, I'm sure we can work

         17  with the Administration to pull together their

         18  enforcement information as well.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  I do think

         20  it's important.  Let's talk about, obviously, we're

         21  talking about point of sale.  Let's talk about what

         22  outreach has, say the Consumer Affairs Department,

         23  done with reference to the stores. Is there, do we

         24  make sure that there is warnings in the stores? Are

         25  there any advertisements as opposed to the proper
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          2  use or the illegal use of these scooters in the

          3  stores?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  No,

          5  there's not. There's not a posting, although I

          6  believe one of your colleagues does have a bill that

          7  would require a posting, but not disclosing the fact

          8  that the scooters cannot be used within the City.

          9  The store doesn't say that you can't use the scooter

         10  in the City, they're not providing a material fact,

         11  so it is a Consumer Protection Law violation, and we

         12  can, we pursue that in two ways. One, which is

         13  having inspectors go into stores and conduct

         14  transactions and then issue violations.  And, two,

         15  we have a really great team that monitors

         16  advertising, and there would be a component there

         17  too.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  I think it's

         19  critical. Obviously, the accessibility is a major

         20  issue, and obviously the sale of these scooters are

         21  a major issue, then obviously the information given

         22  to the public regarding what is the legal use

         23  currently, or what is the illegal use that's going

         24  on throughout the City.  As I said, I think that's

         25  of utmost importance to obviously put some type of
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          2  notices up in and around either the stores, or

          3  getting the information out there in some other

          4  fashion.  But, I think that's very important.  Thank

          5  you very much Mr. Chair.  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

          7  Assistant Commissioner Toole, are you saying that

          8  your Department does have statistics concerning

          9  point of sale transactions on these scooters?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  We can

         11  give you the statistics on the enforcement

         12  initiatives we've done.  They would fall under two,

         13  the point of sale and advertising.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, they would be,

         15  I guess, it would be statistics based on spot checks

         16  by your inspectors concerning the lack of

         17  information given to the purchasers of these

         18  scooters?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And Deputy

         21  Commissioner Woloch, you -- it sounds like the

         22  Department does not want to see these scooters on

         23  streets and sidewalks --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  --

         25  Correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Why would that be?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Why

          4  would we not want them?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Why would you not

          6  want them?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well, as

          8  I pointed out, and I think we've spoken about it at

          9  other hearings, New York City is really unique.

         10  We're a pedestrian oriented City. This is a City

         11  whose very fabric relies on our ability to walk

         12  around and to walk around, to walk around safely,

         13  and its pedestrians, who are the primary users of

         14  our sidewalks. Pedestrians range from you and I, to

         15  children and older adults who can't walk as easily,

         16  and it's extremely important to us and I think it's

         17  extremely important to the police department to

         18  protect them.

         19                 We're glad that current law prohibits

         20  these devices from being used on sidewalks, and

         21  frankly, are concerned that there are different

         22  pieces of legislation in Albany that would, would

         23  allow these devices on our sidewalks.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And what about our

         25  streets?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well,

          3  the current, current law does not allow these

          4  devices to be registered, to be registered motor

          5  vehicles, and therefore, they're prohibited on the

          6  streets.  We're comfortable with that.  I think if

          7  they were allowed on the streets, it would similarly

          8  pose a danger to not only pedestrians and motorists

          9  on the streets, but to the operators of the devices

         10  themselves, and they would be at great risk.

         11                 So, we don't want them on our

         12  streets.  We don't want them on our sidewalks.  And

         13  again, are concerned that there could be, could be a

         14  change in law Statewide that would, that would allow

         15  them.  I think it would be imperative, then, that we

         16  work together to make sure that that wouldn't have

         17  an effect in New York City, and perhaps, it's worth

         18  doing something, doing something on that front ahead

         19  of time.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Now, your -- I can

         21  appreciate what you're saying about the use of

         22  scooters, of these scooters on our sidewalks, but

         23  you're not actually, you don't actually have an

         24  overall concern about all types of scooters on our

         25  City's sidewalks, right?  I mean, for example, there
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          2  are the scooters that are used by people who are not

          3  able to walk on their own. Does the Department have

          4  any problem with scooters, with those scooters on

          5  the sidewalks, scooters that are used by people who

          6  are disabled?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I mean,

          8  I guess it comes down to what our terms mean.  But,

          9  I think the legislation proposed appropriately

         10  excludes those devices, and I think it's extremely

         11  important that we allow people with disabilities,

         12  the ability to move around.  So, I think that's

         13  appropriate.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I would fully agree

         15  with that. That we don't want to start prohibiting

         16  people who are not able to get around apart from

         17  using the motorized scooters on, to allow them to

         18  continue to use those motorized scooters on

         19  sidewalks.  I think, the point I'm trying to make is

         20  that it's not really a blanket statement that you

         21  mean to make about all scooters.  There are certain

         22  kinds of scooters that are used for different

         23  purposes that the Department would be amenable to

         24  for use on City sidewalks.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yea, I'm
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          2  not sure about the word scooter.  Again, I guess

          3  this comes down to the words we're using.  You know,

          4  a powered wheelchair that a) it moves slowly, and b)

          5  it's necessary for certain folks with disabilities

          6  to move around.  But, I wouldn't then extend that

          7  logic to allow for other devices that may pose more

          8  of a danger and don't meet as important a need.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Is there a

         10  particular concern on the Department's part that we

         11  have people of varying age groups using these

         12  scooters on City sidewalks?  I mean they are using

         13  them on City sidewalks.  I can personally attest to

         14  that.  In almost all of the boroughs, I've seen

         15  people ride them on sidewalks.  But, I've generally

         16  seen them, the people I've seen riding them on

         17  sidewalks have generally been young people,

         18  typically teenagers and adolescents.  Does the

         19  Department have any view about people of different

         20  age ranges riding these scooters, or is the concern

         21  applicable to all age groups, equally?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I mean,

         23  I think like everything, it's -- our responsibility

         24  is to be concerned about everybody's welfare.  I

         25  think we're always particularly concerned by
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          2  anything involving children.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, you do have

          4  more of a concern when it comes to kids riding these

          5  scooters?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I

          7  wouldn't necessarily, I wouldn't necessarily, I

          8  wouldn't --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: -- Well, would you

         10  have more of a concern --

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: -- I

         12  wouldn't want to imply that we don't have concern

         13  about an adult using them --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Oh, no, that's

         15  not what --

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  --

         17  Could, again, pose a danger not only to themselves,

         18  but to other people who are using, using the

         19  sidewalks.  So, I, you know, I think we're concerned

         20  about anybody using these devices.  Of course, we're

         21  particularly concerned when it's a, when a child is

         22  involved.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Now, it's a little

         24  bit tricky, because in the case of bicycles, we

         25  generally don't have a problem with like a five

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  year- old riding a bicycle on a sidewalk, whereas,

          3  we would have a big problem with a 35 year- old

          4  riding --

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  -- In --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- A bicycle --

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  -- Fact,

          8  the law reflects that --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: -- That's right --

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  -- Up to

         11  14 --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- So, there is an

         13  age distinction made in the case of bicycles.  The

         14  main difference between the bicycles and the

         15  motorized scooters, is that a five year- old or a 14

         16  year- old, since that's the threshold of the law,

         17  you can only ride a bicycle so fast.  The different

         18  kinds of bicycles that a five year- old uses are

         19  very different from the kind of bicycle that a 35

         20  year- old may use.  So, there's more of a, there is

         21  that age distinction and it has to do with the

         22  amount of harm that's potentially created by the

         23  rider of that bicycle on a sidewalk.

         24                 In the case of a motorized scooter,

         25  maybe five year- old is too extreme.  Let's say ten
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          2  year- old, because there are ten year- olds on

          3  motorized scooters.  A ten year- old could go just

          4  as fast, if not faster, on the same scooter as a 35

          5  year old.  A ten year- old could go faster simply

          6  because the ten year old is much lighter than the 35

          7  year- old.  So, unlike bicycles, the motorized

          8  scooter creates a greater danger when a younger

          9  person is using it.  Would you agree with that?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         11  it's hard to do that comparison.  But, certainly --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Why is it --

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  -- In

         14  the hands of a child, a motorized scooter is

         15  something that, on the City sidewalk would be

         16  extremely, and is extremely troublesome, if it

         17  happens.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Is it more

         19  troublesome than a fully grown adult using the

         20  scooter on the sidewalk?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Hard to

         22  do that comparison.  You're, you know, if a --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Are you saying

         24  you're not troubled --

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: -- If
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          2  your or I were to be on a motorized scooter and

          3  would accelerate it to the, you know, the faster

          4  degree possible, and were to bump into somebody,

          5  we'd probably cause a lot more damage to that person

          6  than a child.  So, I think anybody using these

          7  devices on our streets or sidewalks could

          8  potentially pose a danger.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Does the Department

         10  have some kind of a survey or study concerning how

         11  fast these scooters are able to go up to now, now at

         12  days?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- I mean, are you

         15  opposed to scooters that can go no more than five

         16  miles per hour, or, I mean, you don't really care

         17  how fast these scooters can go?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  You

         19  know, certainly a device going one mile an hour is a

         20  lot less troublesome than a device going much

         21  faster.  So, I don't have that, you know, a

         22  threshold with me, per se.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, if a scooter

         24  that goes one mile per hour is not really a danger,

         25  at what point does it become a danger?  If, even if
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          2  you don't know the exact threshold over which it

          3  becomes a danger, does the Department have any idea

          4  how fast the scooters are on the streets and

          5  sidewalks that are being used now at days, can go?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I don't

          7  have that data with me --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- But, do you

          9  think that someone in the Department has actually

         10  looked at and compiled that data?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I'm not

         12  sure, but I can go back.  I know certainly within

         13  our Safety Education Division we've taken a lot of

         14  time thinking about scooter safety, not necessarily

         15  motorized, but the scooters themselves, which are

         16  very prevalent.  But, I'm happy to go back and see

         17  if we have any studies along those lines, and if the

         18  police department does as well.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Last, let me defer

         20  to my colleagues, I have one more question.  Council

         21  Member McMahon.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  Thank you

         23  Mr. Chairman, and more of a quick statement rather

         24  than a question, although if you'd like to comment

         25  on it.  It seems clear that the Administration would
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          2  like to have these things off of our streets and our

          3  sidewalks.  I submit to you, the only way to do that

          4  is a zero tolerance policy, because that is the only

          5  way that this is enforceable.

          6                 The law enforcement, the police, the

          7  DOT workers and the Parks workers have to know, you

          8  see a scooter like this, it's illegal, cannot be in

          9  the City of New York, and nor should they be in the

         10  City of New York, we all agree with that.  By doing

         11  that, you make this initiative enforceable.  Also,

         12  by joining us in passing this bill, we send a

         13  message to Albany.  To let them know that they

         14  should not be passing bills that might possibly

         15  legalize these life threatening devices back in our

         16  City streets.  The best way to defeat any initiative

         17  up there, which is what you also spoke to what you

         18  would like to do, is for us to join together, find

         19  language we accept, to pass a bill with zero

         20  tolerance and let Albany know that we don't want

         21  these things in our streets because we, it's not

         22  good for our children, it's not good for our

         23  pedestrians.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Again,

         25  we do share the concern that the Council has, and
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          2  frankly, and you know, we're not disheartened that

          3  you're focusing on it, and we're happy to keep

          4  working with you on the issue.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  He's getting

          6  closer Mr. Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

          8  Member McMahon, and the question is from Council

          9  Member Vallone.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I agree with

         11  Council Member McMahon.  I think we all want these

         12  off the streets.  This bill would stop the sale,

         13  which would absolutely result in less scooters on

         14  the streets, and it would allow the NYPD to easily

         15  enforce the law.  If they see a scooter in a

         16  driveway or on a stoop, running, they can take it.

         17  They can't do that right now. Typically, they get a

         18  call because of the noise, they come, the kids

         19  already back in their driveway or on their steps and

         20  the cops are not going to hide behind a bush until

         21  they go back out on the street, they can take it.

         22  You're advocating keeping the law the way it is.  I

         23  asked this before, but I didn't get an answer from

         24  you Mr. Woloch, why should it be anything different

         25  this Summer if the law stays the way it is?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I mean,

          3  I think, again, I think there's an acknowledgment

          4  that there could probably be certainly more we can

          5  do on the education front.  I mean, I think you

          6  could argue it the other way.  If another law is

          7  passed, and there's not necessarily enforcement to

          8  match that, it won't necessarily have an impact.

          9                 I mean, there is a law on the books,

         10  and again, I think we're happy to, you know, happy

         11  to work with you to leverage that as much as

         12  possible.  I think as Chairman Liu described in the

         13  beginning, this is an issue that has changed over

         14  the past few years.  I think you alluded this as

         15  well.  The price has come down, that is something

         16  that's of concern.  It is an issue that we're, we

         17  will continue to keep an eye on, but --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  -- With all

         19  due respect, I think you just testified that

         20  absolutely nothing will be different this Summer

         21  than next Summer.  You said potentially more

         22  education can be done.  You didn't say, we're doing

         23  more education.  Ms. Toole didn't say we're going to

         24  do more enforcement, we're going to send people into

         25  stores.  Nothing. Your Administration just testified
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          2  that nothing is going to be done, and our streets

          3  will be just as dangerous as they were last year.

          4                 The City Council's taking action, and

          5  we would hope that you would support this action and

          6  not come in here and belittle it.  But, apparently,

          7  that's not the case.  I'm amazed that you came in

          8  here without statistics to show what type of

          9  enforcement you're doing and without a plan.  No

         10  plan at all to stop these scooters, other than

         11  what's going on right now, which is completely

         12  insufficient.  Again, I commend Council Member

         13  McMahon and Council Member Liu for their leadership

         14  here and I think we need to get this done to save

         15  the lives of kids, because nothing else is getting

         16  done.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         18  Member Vallone.  I certainly would have to echo many

         19  of the comments that you've stated.  There is a

         20  danger, especially from the kids who are using these

         21  scooters on City streets and sidewalks.  I think

         22  that the Administration does need to take some

         23  action with regard to enforcement and education and

         24  helping us put together legislation, as well, that

         25  will serve to get these scooters off the City's
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          2  streets and sidewalks.

          3                 I have one other question, which I'm

          4  simply asking for a clarification about your

          5  statements concerning your lobbying against this

          6  Segway Bill, specifically by advocating for a New

          7  York City exemption.  I guess I'm getting confused

          8  by some of the double negatives here.  Could you

          9  just clarify what the Administration's position is

         10  on the Segway Bill and what is exactly the Segway

         11  Bill?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  The

         13  Segway Bill, as I understand it, would allow Segway

         14  devices to be used throughout the State on public

         15  sidewalks.  What we would hope to do, is to make

         16  sure that if such legislation were to pass, that the

         17  City would take steps to make sure it was excluded

         18  from that legislation.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Meaning that --

         20  excuse me -- meaning that the Segway would then not

         21  be permitted to be operated within the City of New

         22  York?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And why is that?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think
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          2  for some of the same reasons that we've all talked

          3  about during the past half hour about motorized,

          4  motorized scooters, and I think as the bill is

          5  written, Segways would be included under the

          6  definition of motorized scooters.  So, I think for,

          7  you know, we can consider it as a type of motorized

          8  scooter, and for the same reasons that we think that

          9  the current law's appropriate in terms of keeping

         10  other motorized scooters off of streets and

         11  sidewalks.  We would not want the Segways to be

         12  allowed in a similar fashion.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, the Department

         14  views all of these kinds of motorized devices in the

         15  same way, even though you do specifically treat the

         16  scooters that are used by people who are disabled

         17  differently?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Again, I

         19  wouldn't necessarily use the word, the word scooter,

         20  but in terms of a motorized, say a motorized

         21  wheelchair --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Device,

         23  motorized device --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  -- Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And, you also make
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          2  no distinction between a $95.00 motorized device and

          3  a device that costs five or six thousand dollars?

          4  It's all the same?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well, I

          6  think, you know, again, acknowledging the real

          7  impact a price can have on the proliferation of

          8  certain devices from a transportation safety point,

          9  once a device is out there, the price doesn't really

         10  matter.  It can pose, a $100.00 device can pose the

         11  same threat as a thousand dollar device.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Thank you

         13  very much. We've been joined by Council Member Helen

         14  Sears from Queens, and she has a question.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you Mr.

         16  Chair, and thank you, it's good to see you.  I just

         17  have a comment and then a question.  The reason that

         18  this bill was done is not to ban things and be

         19  punitive.  It was done because what has happened in

         20  the City of New York, and if you're isolated to the

         21  Borough of Manhattan, you won't see as much as you

         22  do in the other boroughs, because the law is so

         23  enforced in Manhattan, and, I say that publicly.

         24                 The fact is that the sidewalks that

         25  are very narrow in most of these residential
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          2  commercial areas that are mixed use, you literally

          3  cannot walk on them.  There have been seniors in my

          4  district who have had to be taken to the hospital

          5  because their heads are turned as they're driving or

          6  on these motorized scooters.  They are a hazard to

          7  the City of New York, and the way we ban other

          8  things and the loss of this economically, I really

          9  don't buy, I have to say that -- excuse me --

         10                 Have you done a study as to just what

         11  the economic loss is of these scooters when we have

         12  the other expense of taking care of people in our

         13  hospitals who have been hit by these scooters?

         14                 You know, I can agree with most of

         15  the positions on DOT and certainly you've come

         16  before this Committee many times, but I fail to see

         17  the logic of not supporting something that has been

         18  proven to be a real danger on the streets and the

         19  way we have rules, no u- turns, no going through red

         20  lights, and if they have to buy these scooters

         21  elsewhere, as you do dirt road bikes, that's where

         22  they belong.  They don't belong on the sidewalks and

         23  they certainly don't belong in the streets.  They

         24  don't belong on Lexington Avenue, going south, with

         25  the traffic that's there, any more than they do on
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          2  Northern Boulevard, Wood Haven Boulevard, Gun Hill

          3  Road.  They do not belong on the sidewalks and on

          4  the streets.  So, you have to explain to me, even

          5  though I came in late, I think I've got the gist of

          6  what you were saying, I don't understand, really,

          7  the logic for not supporting it.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We agree

          9  that we do not want these devices on our streets or

         10  sidewalks and we had discussed that earlier.

         11  Current State law prohibits them from being used on

         12  streets and sidewalks.  We're happy to work on

         13  improving education and enforcement and taking as

         14  much advantage of current law as possible, because

         15  we agree that these devices pose a hazard and they

         16  have no place on our streets and sidewalks, whether

         17  it's on Lexington Avenue, or whether it's anywhere

         18  else on public property in the five boroughs.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I understand

         20  that and with due respect to State laws and

         21  certainly this Council has to send up our

         22  Resolutions and home messages.  The fact is when

         23  people come out their doors, they're not thinking

         24  about what State laws are, and that is a fact.  They

         25  really are looking at, if they are, they pay
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          2  attention to the law, they become more cognizant of

          3  a City law than they do a State law, and I think

          4  that's a simple fact.

          5                 What this is doing is really

          6  enforcing and stabilizing.  Because the State law,

          7  by the time it reaches the five counties in the City

          8  of New York, it is forgotten.  There are 60 counties

          9  in this State and by the time it trickles north to

         10  south, we have a problem.  Very few even recognize

         11  it's a State law and I think that if the recognition

         12  had to be, they recognize faster a City law because

         13  it confronts them every single day.  Thank you Mr.

         14  Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         16  Member Sears. I certainly want to thank the

         17  Administration, Deputy Commissioner Woloch and

         18  Assistant Commissioner Toole for joining us this

         19  morning.  I certainly would urge that you work

         20  closely with us on legislation, as well as bolster

         21  your efforts on education and enforcement.

         22                 I agree with Council Member Vallone

         23  that it sounds from your testimony that there will

         24  not be any changes from last Summer on the part of

         25  the efforts that the Administration in undertaking
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          2  to keep our streets and sidewalks safe from these

          3  motorized devices, and yet, there is a change that

          4  is very dramatic from last Summer, and that is the

          5  continued proliferation of these devices on City

          6  streets and sidewalks.

          7                 At the end of last Summer, when

          8  Council Member McMahon originally submitted the

          9  bill, there was already a problem with the number of

         10  scooters, the number of these motorized devices on

         11  our City's streets and sidewalks.  Let me, I can

         12  personally attest to the fact that the amount of

         13  advertising and the number of outlets and businesses

         14  that sell these devices has really skyrocketed, even

         15  in this past year, since last Summer.

         16                 We are getting into the warmer months

         17  now, and so we can expect, we can fully expect that

         18  there will be many, many more of these devices on

         19  City streets and sidewalks.  We need to do something

         20  before something tragic happens, and I urge you to

         21  work with us to pass a bill or to modify this bill,

         22  so that it can achieve the objectives in your minds

         23  and to undertake those education and enforcement

         24  actions.

         25                 I hate to be, I hate to be, I don't
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          2  have a crystal ball, but, just based on what we see

          3  on the streets and sidewalks and the amount of

          4  advertising out there, it just seems like something

          5  awful is going to happen if we don't do something

          6  before the warm months are upon us.  Council Member

          7  McMahon.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  If I could

          9  just add to that Mr. Chairman, underscore exactly

         10  what you said.  And, please, that you understand

         11  that this is something that we feel very strongly

         12  about, and sometimes our questions or demeanor here

         13  may seem personally harsh, it is not meant to be

         14  that way at all. But, in the beginning of the

         15  hearing, I was just a little surprised, upset about

         16  the positions taken, but you shouldn't walk away and

         17  think that the hard work that your agency does, Ms.

         18  Toole, and what you do Mr. Woloch, is not

         19  appreciated by the Council at all and how well you

         20  work with our offices, and we understand that and

         21  appreciate that.  But, this is a matter, I believe

         22  it's a matter of life and death and one I feel very

         23  passionately about.  So, please don't take

         24  personally any rhetorical questions I may have

         25  posed.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  Thank

          3  you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

          5  for joining us.  At this time, I'd like to call upon

          6  the next panel to testify.  We have Noah Budnick

          7  from Transportation Alternatives, Michael Morrell

          8  from the Westerleigh Improvement Society, Frank

          9  Cervi, Use of Safe Alternative, the Use of Safe

         10  Alternate Means of Transit, and Craig Wilson from

         11  the American Lung Association. Please join us at the

         12  witness table.

         13                 And, let me give notice to the panel

         14  who will follow this one.  The next panel will be

         15  Matthew Dailida from Segway, LLC, Joanne Krugman

         16  from SEG America, Chandler Hovey, Edwin Atkins and

         17  Harris Silver from Citystreets.  Anybody who wishes

         18  to testify or offer comments, please fill out one of

         19  these forms.  Yes, we have several other panels to

         20  go, to offer comments today.  Noah, would you like

         21  to proceed?

         22                 MR. BUDNICK:  Thank you Chairman.

         23  Good morning Council Members.  My name is Noah

         24  Budnick.  I'm the Projects Director for

         25  Transportation Alternatives, New York City's
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          2  advocates for bicyclists, pedestrians and sensible

          3  transportation.  We're an organization with over

          4  6,000 dues paying members and we've been advocating

          5  for safer streets and sidewalks in New York City for

          6  the past 30 years.

          7                 Today, Transportation Alternatives

          8  supports Council Intro. 98, which would ban the

          9  sale, lease, rental and operation of motorized

         10  scooters in New York City.  We've long been

         11  concerned about motorized scooters, because they're

         12  a threat to public safety and to quality of life.

         13  They're often ridden recklessly against the flow of

         14  traffic and on sidewalks and bicycle and pedestrian

         15  paths.  I appreciate the Council Members' attention

         16  to child safety today, and I also want to highlight

         17  the safety of young pedestrians and old pedestrians,

         18  whose safety is threatened on the sidewalks by any

         19  scooter that's driven there.

         20                 In New York City, motorized scooters

         21  exist in a legal gray area.  It's legal to sell

         22  them, but it's illegal to drive them.  In order to

         23  improve the safety of the traveling public and

         24  public safety in general, motorized scooters should

         25  be banned from operating on City streets, sidewalks,
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          2  bicycle and pedestrian bridge paths, and greenway

          3  paths.  Specifically, Transportation Alternatives

          4  urges the Council go do four things.

          5                 Number One, ban the sale, use, rental

          6  or operation of all gasoline- powered scooters in

          7  New York City.  Number two, ban the sale, lease,

          8  rental or operation of all electric- powered

          9  scooters with motors over 300 watts in the City.

         10  Number three, ban all motorized scooters from being

         11  driven on New York City sidewalks, bicycle and

         12  pedestrian paths and multi- use greenway paths.

         13  Number Four, oppose New York State Bill 579C, which

         14  would allow Segway scooters to be driven on New York

         15  City sidewalks.

         16                 Gasoline- powered scooters are

         17  incompatible with the City's dense streets and

         18  housing.  They're noisy, polluting and are fire

         19  hazards.  Gasoline- powered scooters cannot be

         20  registered with the Department of Motor Vehicles,

         21  and can only be operated on private property.  Per

         22  gallon of gas, their two stroke engines spew

         23  hundreds of times more pollutants into our air than

         24  an automobile engine.  Additionally, gasoline-

         25  powered scooters cause fires, most notably, a June
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          2  2003 fire that killed a 14 year- old Harlem girl.

          3  Given these public safety threats, gasoline- powered

          4  scooters should be banned in New York City.

          5                 In a city constantly fighting

          6  gridlock, Transportation Alternatives recognizes the

          7  need to create alternatives to automobile travel.

          8  We support allowing low powered electric scooters to

          9  travel on City streets, again, not on sidewalks, but

         10  on City streets.  A scooter with a 300 watt electric

         11  motor, which is the standard set by the European

         12  Union can travel around 12 miles an hour, which is

         13  about the same speed as a bicyclist rides in City

         14  traffic.  Provided the electric scooter riders use

         15  lights and a bell, which are also required for

         16  cyclists, they should be allowed to operate their

         17  vehicles on New York City streets, and again, not on

         18  the sidewalk.

         19                 Transportation Alternatives

         20  emphasizes our position that no one should be

         21  allowed to drive any scooter, whether it's an

         22  electric or gasoline- powered or a Segway scooter on

         23  any New York City sidewalk, bicycle and pedestrian

         24  bridge path or multi- use bicycle and pedestrian

         25  path.  Pedestrians are already a much beleaguered
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          2  group, should not be put in harm's way and forced to

          3  contend with anyone driving any sort of vehicle on

          4  the sidewalk.

          5                 New York City Traffic Law already

          6  bans people from driving motor vehicles and limited

          7  use vehicles that travel less than 40 miles an hour,

          8  and bicycles from driving and riding on the

          9  sidewalk.  In any new City legislation, this

         10  prohibit on sidewalk driving of motorized scooters

         11  and Segway devices should be continued.

         12                 New York City, and New York City is

         13  rightly legal for an -- sorry, let me start that

         14  again -- in New York City, it is rightly illegal for

         15  an adult to ride a bicycle on the sidewalk.  The

         16  average bicycle weighs 30 pounds, yet adults are too

         17  big, too fast and too threatening to safety share

         18  space with small children, seniors and other

         19  vulnerable pedestrians.

         20                 Likewise, allowing any motorized

         21  scooter, gasoline or electric- powered, to drive on

         22  the sidewalk, puts children, seniors, persons with

         23  disabilities and the blind in danger.  For the

         24  aforementioned reasons, we also urge the Council to

         25  oppose New York State Senate Bill 579C, which would
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          2  allow Segway scooters to be driven on sidewalks

          3  throughout New York State, including in New York

          4  City.

          5                 The following is just a brief list of

          6  organizations that oppose the State Senate Bill.

          7  The Mayor's Office of New York City, AAA of New York

          8  State, The American Lung Association of New York

          9  State, The New York Public Interest Research Group,

         10  NYPIRG, the New York States Statewide Senior Action

         11  Council, the Citizens Environmental Coalition,

         12  Environmental Advocates of New York, Tri- State

         13  Transportation Campaign, Natural Resources Defense

         14  Council, Regional Plan Association, and about a

         15  dozen others.  Their testimony's included with ours

         16  today.

         17                 Finally, Transportation Alternatives

         18  urges City Council to act quickly, ban gas- powered

         19  scooters from the City and electric- powered

         20  scooters from the City sidewalks.  Thank you and

         21  I'll be happy to answer any question you have today.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Please

         23  proceed.

         24                 MR. MORRELL:  Mr. Chairman, Members

         25  of the Committee, my name is Michael Morrell.  I'm
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          2  President of the Westerleigh Improvement Society, a

          3  civic association located on Staten Island.  Our

          4  Society has a membership of approximately 700

          5  residents in the Westerleigh section of Staten

          6  Island.  I'm here today to voice the support of our

          7  Society for Intro. 98, sponsored by over 20 Council

          8  Members, including our Councilman, Michael McMahon.

          9                 Over the past few years, the Society

         10  has received numerous complaints from area residents

         11  concerning the operation of motorized scooters in

         12  our community.  The operators of these scooters are

         13  primarily youths who operate them recklessly.  Area

         14  residents have observed scooters being used in total

         15  disregard for the personal safety of their

         16  operators, as well as motorists and pedestrians.

         17                 Many problems associated with the

         18  operation of motorized scooters include their noise,

         19  pollution and threat to the well- being of motorists

         20  and pedestrians.  Motorists, unaware of the presence

         21  of scooters cannot anticipate them and safety

         22  operate their automobiles.  Pedestrians are caught

         23  off- guard by the speed and direction of the

         24  scooters.  Personal injury and property damage

         25  resulting from collisions is often uncompensated
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          2  because of the lack of insurance coverage.

          3                 Despite the efforts of the police to

          4  discourage their use, parents continue to purchase

          5  motorized scooters for their children.  Intro. 98

          6  would prohibit the sale of scooters in New York

          7  City, and would subject the user to a substantial

          8  fine and impoundment of the scooter.  The

          9  Westerleigh Improvement Society strongly supports

         10  this legislation.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 MR. WILSON:  Good morning.  My name

         14  is Craig Wilson, and I am the Associate Director of

         15  Environmental Health for the American Lung

         16  Association of the City of New York.  For more than

         17  100 years the Lung Association has fought for long

         18  health, including the fight for cleaner air.  I'm

         19  pleased to be here today to represent the

         20  Association regarding New York City's air quality

         21  and how Intro. 98 can help to improve the air we

         22  breathe.

         23                 New Yorkers are exposed to some of

         24  the most unhealthful air pollution levels in the

         25  Country.  For the fourth year in a row, the American
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          2  Lung Association's State of the Air report found

          3  that every borough monitored for ozone failed our

          4  clean air test.

          5                 Richmond County or Staten Island

          6  consistently has the most number of days where ozone

          7  is above Federal health standards out of any county

          8  in the State.  Moreover, New York City is in the

          9  middle of an asthma epidemic and the mere act of

         10  breathing can put the more than one million

         11  asthmatics, 300,000 of which are children, at risk

         12  for severe health complications. Air pollution is

         13  particularly burdensome for those with lung disease,

         14  as well as young children, the elderly and those

         15  working or exercising outdoors.  In some

         16  neighborhoods, such as Harlem, nearly 25 percent of

         17  children are living with this debilitating lung

         18  disease.

         19                 With respect to Intro. 98, by

         20  eliminating the immediate danger posed to New York

         21  City residents by these very dirty scooters, Intro.

         22  98 will also eliminate the disproportionate amount

         23  of pollutants they emit. Typically, these scooters

         24  are equipped with extremely crude engines, that

         25  unlike the engines for the typical passenger
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          2  vehicle, lacks sophisticated emission control

          3  technologies.

          4                 While individually they may not seem

          5  like a big polluter, small sources often add up to a

          6  big source of emissions.  For example, a lawn mower

          7  will emit the same amount of pollution in one hour

          8  as a new car would driven over 500 miles.  A

          9  personal watercraft engine will emit the same amount

         10  of smog forming emissions in seven hours, as a new

         11  car would emit if driven over 100,000 miles.

         12                 Additionally, this legislation has

         13  the added benefit of restricting the use of the

         14  Segway.  Legislation has been introduced in Albany

         15  that would allow for this device to be used in New

         16  York City, even in the same places currently off

         17  limits to motorized vehicles.  The sponsors of this

         18  legislation are promoting the bill on behalf of the

         19  Segway Corporation and are doing so to encourage

         20  pedestrians to use this vehicle instead of walking.

         21  In fact, a Memorandum of Support filed with this

         22  bill talks about the Segway as a device that

         23   "empowers the pedestrian."  The device is said to

         24  allow a person to accomplish more than he/she could

         25  by simply walking.
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          2                 The Segway is an electronically-

          3  powered scooter that stores its electricity in a

          4  battery.  While we support electric drive

          5  technologies used in motor vehicles, since they are

          6  more efficient and cleaner than the internal

          7  combustion engines they typically replace, the

          8  American Lung Association of the City of New York

          9  opposes the use of Segways, as they add a pollution

         10  component to an otherwise healthy and pollution-

         11  free form of transportation, walking.

         12                 In short, since Segways are not

         13  necessary for pedestrian trips in New York City,

         14  they should not be permitted on our sidewalks.

         15  Allowing them on sidewalks can make walking a

         16  hazardous, and thus -- excuse me -- allowing them on

         17  sidewalks can make walking hazardous, and thus,

         18  decrease the amount of pollution- free walking.  For

         19  these reasons, the American Lung Association of the

         20  City of New York strongly supports this legislation.

         21    Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

         23  Atkins, no, I'm sorry, Mr. Cervi.

         24                 MR. CERVI:  Yes, good morning Council

         25  Members. I'm an individual who is in favor of the
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          2  use of alternate means of transport, and more so,

          3  the electric scooter.  I, listening to the Council

          4  Members this morning, indeed, the safety is

          5  primarily the number one objective, which is of

          6  concern to you, and my suggestion to the Council

          7  Members is to consider a permit system at the point

          8  of sale.

          9                 In other words, permit system would

         10  include safety equipment requirements by the vendor

         11  in question, they must also be worn on the scooter,

         12  with the individual, whether it be a juvenile of an

         13  age no less than, let's say 14.  So, to accompany

         14  the individual, he must carry this permit.  But, I

         15  would strongly suggest that with the congestion that

         16  the City already has with automobiles and cars, to

         17  also consider the electric scooter as an

         18  environmentally free alternate means of transport of

         19  getting around.

         20                 Now, obviously, you know, where can

         21  you ride this and how fast can you go is, would have

         22  to be a consideration as far as power versus horse

         23  power, that's electrical wattage versus horsepower.

         24  But, they would, for me, for you to understand,

         25  these two issues, I think, are primarily the kind of
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          2  sticking block to make a decision on whether this is

          3  going to pass or not, or whether you need to

          4  instigate a bill to allow this to pursue further.

          5  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  I have

          7  a quick question for Mr. Wilson.  Thank you for

          8  advocating on behalf of lungs.  I want to assure you

          9  that we in the City Council are pro lung.  Now,

         10  does, is the American, the American Lung Association

         11  against the use of, I guess, people movers at

         12  airports, at major transit hubs and shopping malls?

         13                 MR. WILSON:  Could you explain a

         14  little bit, for a disabled person?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  No, just for

         16  anybody, people movers are, I guess, moving

         17  sidewalks or moving, kind of like escalators, but

         18  not really.  Escalators --

         19                 MR. WILSON:  -- I understand --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- That are on a

         21  level --

         22                 MR. WILSON:  -- To be honest, we

         23  haven't necessarily considered it before and I don't

         24  know if we have an official position.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, the,
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          2  basically, the people movers allow people to, I

          3  guess, people who are walking from one place to

          4  another, to kind of take a break from walking and

          5  just stand and still be transported.  So, in those

          6  cases --

          7                 MR. WILSON:  -- It seems like that

          8  may be an efficient way of transporting a fair

          9  number of people.  It is electric and we would

         10  certainly prefer that they walk.  But, there might

         11  be other considerations in an airport.  With the

         12  Segways and other, we fear that they'll contribute

         13  to congestion on the sidewalks, running into people,

         14  all the issues that have been discussed over the

         15  last hour, in and of themselves increase pollution

         16  and also cause others not to walk because of their

         17  safety concerns.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Thank

         19  you very much for your time today.  Let me ask the

         20  next panel to come up. That's Matthew Dailida,

         21  Joanne Krugman (sic), Chandler Hovey and Edwin

         22  Atkins.  And, following that panel will be Harris

         23  Silver, Steve Stollman, Joan Jarowski and George

         24  Bliss.  Good morning Mr. Dailida, please proceed.

         25                 MR. DAILIDA:  Chairman Liu, I think

                                                            70

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  I'm going to defer to Chandler, just so he can

          3  testify and then sit down, since he can't be on his

          4  feet for too long a period of time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Mr. Dailida, do you

          6  wish to testify at all?

          7                 MR. DAILIDA:  Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, why don't you

          9  proceed then.

         10                 MR. DAILIDA:  You want me to, okay.

         11  Good morning Chairman Liu and Members of the

         12  Transportation Committee and thank you for the

         13  opportunity to meet with you today.  For the record,

         14  my name is Matt Dailida, Director of Government

         15  Affairs for Segway, LLC, located in Bedford, New

         16  Hampshire.

         17                 Segway, LLC is the developer and

         18  manufacturer of the Segway Human Transporter, a

         19  revolutionary personal transportation device

         20  currently being utilized by government officials,

         21  corporations, public safety organizations and by our

         22  military within anti- terrorism functions.

         23                 In late 2001, here in New York City,

         24  not far from here, our company's founder introduced

         25  the world to the Segway HT.  At first glance, some
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          2  stated it was nothing more than a scooter.  But to

          3  those who knew Dean Kamen, they understood the

          4  marvel behind the simplicity of its design and that

          5  it embodied his vision to reduce our society's

          6  dependence on cars, therefore, reducing pollution.

          7  600 million cars today cohabitate (sic) our world,

          8  expected to double by 2030.  With 6.8 billion

          9  gallons of gas wasted each year by cars just sitting

         10  in traffic, the strain on our environment and

         11  infrastructure is, at best, precarious.

         12                 With estimates by the U.S. EPA that

         13  91 percent of the travel is by a single individual,

         14  in an automobile, traveling no more than five miles,

         15  mainly in urban centers, we should not be surprised

         16  that the future of personal transportation in

         17  evolving.

         18                 Responsible people are turning to do,

         19  to do -- excuse me -- to new modes of

         20  transportation.  That movement should be embraced.

         21  However, any movement should not give way to public

         22  safety.  I applaud the Committee for taking a

         23  serious and thoughtful approach in regulating

         24  personal transportation devices, including motorized

         25  scooters here in New York City.
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          2                 The Segway HT is unlike any other

          3  two- wheel device, employing technology once

          4  believed to be inconceivable. It is a device that

          5  one wears, rather than rides or drives. Developed

          6  with passion and principle, its genesis is found

          7  within the iBOT, the device you may have seen

          8  recently on 60 Minutes and other national programs,

          9  that has redefined the capabilities of a seated

         10  mobility device.  That technology is the result of

         11  years of development and intense testing for safety.

         12                 Building from this, the finest

         13  engineers in the world set to develop a device which

         14  would, quite simply, blend within its environment.

         15  Utilizing the most advanced balancing and sensory

         16  technology, the Segway's ten computers and five

         17  solid state gyroscopes monitor the rider 100 times

         18  per second, constantly maintaining the device's

         19  balance.  By only sliding, slightly shifting one's

         20  weight, the device travels forward, backward or to a

         21  complete safe stop.  As well, the device can turn in

         22  place and has a footprint no larger than the average

         23  adult male.

         24                 The Segway is unique in that it does

         25  not have a gasoline engine, does not emit any
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          2  pollution, nor makes any noise and is ideal for City

          3  travel, as it gets the equivalent of 450 miles per

          4  gallon.  It does not include a gear shift, seat,

          5  pedals, brakes or steering wheel.  It allows a

          6  single person to stand upright, travel safety at

          7  speeds as slow as a saunter, as quickly as a jog,

          8  and even more remarkably, the real genius behind the

          9  technology, be fully operational and balanced while

         10  completely stopped.

         11                 However, the development of the

         12  Segway HT is only half the story.  Ensuring its

         13  proper use in our society is the other half and to

         14  which one that Segway, LLC has long committed itself

         15  to, stepped in a long, steeped in a long and

         16  recognized history of developing medical products,

         17  Segway and safety are synonymous.

         18                 Believing the role of government is

         19  not only to prosper technology, but to also ensure

         20  its proper use in society, Segway has sought the

         21  creation of a regulatory framework at every level

         22  government, working for three objectives.  One,

         23  create a definition specific to the Segway

         24  technology under the State law, two, state clearly,

         25  where, how, when and by whom the Segway can be
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          2  operated, three, and most importantly, authorize

          3  municipalities to further regulate and/or restrict

          4  the use of Segway as they deem necessary.

          5                 The New York State Legislature is

          6  considering legislation regulating Segway use.  When

          7  passed, the law will require that Segway, LLC and

          8  New York City enter into discussions, much like

          9  today, specific to the Segway, and how it can be

         10  integrated into your public transportation network.

         11  Segway, LLC looks forward to these discussions with

         12  you.

         13                 We understand from discussions with

         14  the sponsor, and you, Mr. Chairman, that this

         15  legislation in intended to restrict the use of

         16  devices which have proven to be a public safety

         17  hazards.  The strict ban on use and proposed strict

         18  sanctions, including seizure, were not intended to

         19  cover Segway at all.  An estimated 75,000 hours of

         20  Segway use has been logged in New York City without

         21  a single injury.  Indeed, in the 46 states in which

         22  Segways are authorized for broad use, not one

         23  bystander injury has been reported to the company or

         24  any Federal, State or local law enforcement agency.

         25                 Our market is very distinct from the
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          2  traditional scooter market.  The average age of a

          3  Segway owner is 52 years old, and to those who seek

          4  alternative modes of transportation, the Segway HT

          5  is a real alternative.  As well, as previously

          6  mentioned, public safety organizations, including

          7  your very own NYPD, have adopted the Segway

          8  technology as a serious tool for community policing

          9  and crowd control.

         10                 In view of the expressed intent by

         11  proponents of Intro. 98 to leave the discussion of

         12  Segway HT to use another day, and the clear

         13  distinction between the Segway and the types of

         14  devices which have raised personal safety concerns,

         15  Segway urges amendment of this legislation to

         16  further clarify exclusion of Segway.  I attach our

         17  proposed amendment.  This definition is consistent

         18  with that adopted in other jurisdictions and that

         19  which we have proposed to the New York State

         20  Legislature  It incorporates specific aspects of

         21  Segway's unique technology, and therefore, clarifies

         22  carve- out of only the Segway.

         23                 The Segway represents the possibility

         24  when people thoughtfully approach problems from new

         25  angles and applies technology, vision and
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          2  creativity.  By working together in the coming

          3  months to adopt reasonable regulation of Segway use,

          4  Segway and New York City can dramatically improve

          5  the lives of many who make a new choice in personal

          6  transportation with the Segway.  The vision of

          7  traveling to work, to the post office or the park on

          8  less than a dime's worth of electricity and

          9  blissfully free of exhaust clouds is much too

         10  exciting.  Thank you for the opportunity to come

         11  before you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

         13  Dailida.  Ms. Krugman (sic).

         14                 MS. KROGMAN:  Good morning.  My name

         15  is Joanne Krogman.  I'm a Member of the New York

         16  Chapter of the Segway Enthusiast Group America, or

         17  SEG America, which is a grassroots national

         18  community of Segway HT owners and enthusiasts.  One

         19  of our main missions is to educate citizens,

         20  governments and our youth on the characteristics and

         21  potentials of Segway technology. Our organization

         22  seeks to maintain people's freedom to use

         23  alternative transportation options, like the Segway

         24  HT, and to increase community awareness of the

         25  benefits of those alternatives.
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          2                 The Council findings and intent

          3  expressed in Intro. 98 speak of motorized scooters,

          4  which travel up to 40 miles per hour and cannot be

          5  maneuvered safely at these speeds, where difficulty

          6  of control poses risk to operators, pedestrians and

          7  vehicular traffic in the streets of the City.

          8  Intro. 98 is designed to eliminate the danger

          9  created by these fast motorized scooters with poor

         10  maneuverability.  However, we are concerned that the

         11  definition of motorized scooter in the proposal is

         12  written so broadly that it also includes safe,

         13  sensible, transportation alternatives as well.  One

         14  of the these is the Segway HT.

         15                 The Segway HT has unique operating

         16  characteristics similar to those of a human, rather

         17  than those of a motorized scooter.  A person takes

         18  up roughly the same amount of room utilizing a

         19  Segway HT as they do without the device.  At rest, a

         20  Segway HT balances in place like a standing person.

         21  While moving forward, the Segway keeps underneath

         22  its rider, and like a human, the Segway turns in

         23  place without impact to any nearby object or person.

         24    In contrast, motorized scooters cannot balance in

         25  place, they make wide turns, and at high speeds, are
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          2  difficult to maneuver.  In short, the Segway HT

          3  moves like a person moves, not like a motorized

          4  scooter moves.

          5                 The Segway HT is utilized by Federal

          6  and State government officials across the nation in

          7  areas as diverse as law enforcement, mail and

          8  package delivery and airport security. With

          9  permissive legislation in over 40 States and

         10  Washington DC, people all across the country have

         11  found the Segway HT to be a sensible, safe and

         12  environmentally friendly transportation solution.

         13  The Segway HT also provides life changing benefits

         14  to major segments of our disabled community,

         15  restoring balance and dignity to many of our elderly

         16  and less- abled neighbors.

         17                 In this City of constant traffic

         18  congestion, the Segway HT provides a safe,

         19  environmentally sensible transportation alternative.

         20  SEG America urges the Council to clarify the

         21  definition of motorized scooter in Intro. 98, so

         22  that it does not include the Segway HT.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

         24  Chandler Hovey.

         25                 MR. HOVEY:  Good morning.  For the
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          2  first 54 years of my life, I enjoyed many sports,

          3  sailing being my favorite.  I started sailing at

          4  three, later went across the Atlantic, the Pacific,

          5  and to Bermuda about 15 times.  I started skiing as

          6  a kid in Vermont and later went out west, where I

          7  caught the powder skiing bug.  I also played hockey,

          8  golf, tennis and squash.  I'm giving you this

          9  background because I want to highlight how difficult

         10  it is for someone with this background to be limited

         11  to a wheelchair or to need to be driven around.

         12                 When I was diagnosed with MS nine

         13  years ago, and had difficult walking, I bought a

         14  Xooter.  You know them because you see kids riding

         15  them around.  It served a purpose for a couple

         16  years, but it turned out to be not what I really

         17  needed. As my walking became more difficult, I read

         18  about the Segway.  A childhood friend of mine

         19  attended a technology conference, saw a demo and

         20  bought one for me.  It has changed my life.

         21                 The Segway has made me independent.

         22  I am now able to ride to work on my Segway.  It

         23  literally takes me from my kitchen to my desk, every

         24  day, about 70 blocks.  I'm able to stop in and buy

         25  newspapers, a cup of coffee on my way to work.  I'm
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          2  able to go out and pick- up lunch.  I can now

          3  accompany my wife while she walks our dog.  I'm able

          4  to do errands for the first time in four years.  I

          5  can get cash at a cash machine.  I've even picked-

          6  up groceries at the supermarket.  I used to need to

          7  hail a cab or get someone to drive me, even if the

          8  trip was just for a block.

          9                 Until the Segway came along, I hadn't

         10  walked outside by myself anywhere for about four

         11  years.  Now, I can get outside and go around almost

         12  anywhere.  Because I rely on the Segway so heavily,

         13  it would be devastating to have it outlawed. I've

         14  investigated various scooters, but the don't

         15  compare.  The control and maneuverability of the

         16  Segway is amazing.  I'm super careful when I'm on my

         17  Segway.  I learned to be super cautious around other

         18  pedestrians, especially the ones on cell phones.  I

         19  do my utmost to be a responsible driver, as I

         20  desperately need the freedom that this wonderful

         21  machine gives me.  I respectfully ask you to allow

         22  me to use Segway in New York.  Sorry for --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Thank you Mr.

         24  Hovey --

         25                 MR. HOVEY:  -- Sorry for the drama,
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          2  but it's kind of close to me.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Mr. Atkins.

          4                 MR. ATKINS:  My name is Edwin Atkins.

          5    I represent a group of Segway owners, and other

          6  adult citizens in the greater New York area, and

          7  wish to submit for your consideration information we

          8  feel is relevant in light of the upcoming hearings.

          9                 There's been a small number of

         10  Segways in the New York area for a year now, and

         11  we're eager to work with all relevant agencies and

         12  legislative bodies to make the smoothest possible

         13  introduction of this exciting technology into our

         14  everyday lives.  We're concerned that such

         15  innovative technology as the Segway, which falls

         16  into a category of its own, has a fair chance to be

         17  evaluated and to realize its full potential in New

         18  York City, and equally concerned that the current

         19  wording of Intros. 98, 37 and 86 are sufficiently

         20  broad as to potentially include the Segway as well.

         21                 We appreciate your consideration in

         22  this matter. We would be happy to meet with you,

         23  answer any further questions that you may have, in

         24  order to arrive at a reasonable decision concerning

         25  the future of the HT Segway in New York City.  I
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          2  have over 300 hours of use in Midtown Manhattan, and

          3  offer this testimony and I am not affiliated with

          4  Segway, LLC.  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

          6  Silver, before you testify, are your comments going

          7  to pertain to Segway or, they are, okay, why don't

          8  you proceed then.

          9                 MR. SILVER:  I guess I should start

         10  by saying this past week I had multiple e- mails

         11  with Steven Wosniak (phonetic), the inventor of the

         12  personal computer, who actually wanted to attend

         13  this hearing and he did let me know that he wanted

         14  you to know how important he thinks Segway

         15  technology is.

         16                 I need to state for the public record

         17  that Transportation Alternatives should either

         18  change their position or change their name.  There

         19  is no device more alternative than a Segway.  And,

         20  is it just me or when David Woloch from DOT talks

         21  about Segway, are others also reminded of the movie,

         22  I am Sam, where a gifted child is born to a retarded

         23  parent?

         24                 My name is Harris Silver, I am the

         25  founder of Citystreets.  We are known as a forward
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          2  thinking New York City based organization, focused

          3  on improving the urban environment by exposing

          4  transportation policy flaws, their cultural impact

          5  on cities and bringing much needed attention to

          6  pedestrian safety issues.  Of particular interest to

          7  this community is the fact that it was Citystreets

          8  who first suggested to DOT in 1997 to use a similar

          9  system to NYPD's Crimestat mapping to look at

         10  pedestrian fatalities.  This is what is credited to

         11  bringing pedestrian fatalities to historic lows.

         12                 Unlike the DOT, we think its a little

         13  early for self- congratulatory celebration.  New

         14  York City still has 15,000 pedestrians seriously

         15  injured after being struck by cars every year.  The

         16  pedestrian environment is so dangerous that Jodie

         17  Lane (phonetic) was electrocuted on January 16,

         18  2004, by just taking her dogs out for a walk, and

         19  the infrastructure planned, designed and built by

         20  DOT does not provide for the safe use of our streets

         21  by all residents.  The deaths of 11 year- old Victor

         22  Florez (phonetic) and ten year- old Juan Estrada

         23  (phonetic), who were killed on February 9, 2004,

         24  when they were in the crosswalk, crossing with the

         25  light proves this irrefutably.  But, here we are, an
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          2  inversion of common sense, actually discussing

          3  banning Segways, which hold so much promise for the

          4  future of our City.

          5                 We have looked at bill 98, New York

          6  City residents deserve better from our legislators

          7  and I am here to publicly demand it.  While we

          8  understand the impetus of this legislation are the

          9  complaints you receive from your constituents about

         10  unsupervised teenagers riding gasoline- powered

         11  scooters, we see this legislation as lacking all

         12  nuance and doing more damage than good.

         13  Specifically, this legislation makes no distinction

         14  between Segways and scooters, no distinction between

         15  gasoline scooters and electric scooters and uses

         16  blended statistics to arrive at a logically flawed

         17  conclusion.

         18                 At Citystreets, we frown upon using

         19  blended national statistics to discuss anything that

         20  happens in New York City because it mixes urban,

         21  suburban and rural data sets.  Bill 98 does just

         22  this, as it uses 4,390 emergency room visits in 2000

         23  as justification for banning motorized scooters.

         24  But, since we are using national statistics, let's

         25  continue down this road.  In 2002, there were 110.2
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          2  million emergency room visits, 4.2 million of these

          3  are identified as due to motor vehicle crashes.  So,

          4  nationally, you have 4,390 people injured by

          5  scooters, and 4.2 million people injured by

          6  automobiles.  Based on this logic, the only

          7  conclusion that you could come to, is to ban

          8  automobiles from our streets, not scooters.

          9                 If you really want to make streets

         10  safer, this is what you should be talking about, how

         11  many pedestrians have been killed in sidewalks and

         12  crosswalks over the years by automobiles, and how

         13  many by scooters?  If you want to make our streets

         14  safer, I suggest you focus on the real cause of

         15  endangerments on our streets.

         16                 You want to save lives? Here's an

         17  idea, 78 percent of pedestrians are hit in the

         18  crosswalk.  How about adding a pedestrian phase to

         19  our signal system, so cars stop turning into people

         20  and killing them?  If you are actually interested in

         21  making our streets safer, and I believe you are, and

         22  saving lives, I suggest you contact Citystreets

         23  outside of this hearing.  We would be glad to share

         24  more ideas with you.  Unlike the DOT, we actually

         25  have ideas.
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          2                 But, here, we're talking about

          3  scooters instead, so let's talk.  If you going to

          4  ban scooters, why is there no distinction between

          5  electric scooters and gas- powered scooters? One is

          6  a noisy, dirty two- stroke engine spewing pollution

          7  and one is a totally quiet and pollution- free way

          8  of moving around our City.  Clearly, there is a

          9  difference and this difference needs to be

         10  recognized because one device needs to be

         11  encouraged, while the other needs to be discouraged.

         12                 Then, there are Segways.  Segways

         13  are, in a word, historic.  If you can't recognize

         14  this, at least you could recognize the fact that

         15  Segways have unique operating characteristics that

         16  have nothing to do with scooters.  For goodness

         17  sakes, there are so different that there's not even

         18  a throttle or a brake.

         19                 People talk about how fast Segways

         20  goes and miss the much bigger point.  For the

         21  record, their top speed in human terms is a running

         22  pace.  This has been totally mischaracterized by

         23  some of the opposition.  However, the genius of

         24  Segways is that they are the only machines on the

         25  planet that go zero miles an hour.  Try to stand on
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          2  a scooter or bicycle when its not moving, it falls

          3  over.  We all know what happens when you turn the

          4  wheel of a car, nothing happens at zero miles an

          5  hour.  A Segway is fully operational at zero miles

          6  per hour.

          7                 To lump Segways in with Scooters

          8  because they don't fit neatly into any category is,

          9  in a word, unacceptable. This goes against both the

         10  spirit and culture of a great City that has always

         11  adopted to new ideas.  And, unlike others here, I

         12  talk from experience.  I have 500 hours of

         13  experience on a Segway in New York City.  It is

         14  important to note that this is 500 more hours than

         15  anyone at the DOT, they do not have one machine.

         16  500 hours more than anyone on the City Council, 500

         17  hours more than anyone in the Mayor's Office and 500

         18  hours more experience than any of our City's well

         19  meaning activists.  So, my testimony is based on

         20  factual data and first- hand experience and not mere

         21  opinion.

         22                 Are Segways safe?  There are 200

         23  Segways in New York City and they have been

         24  operating for 18 months.  If you factor in an

         25  average use of ten hours a week, which we think is a

                                                            88

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  conservative use estimate, that's 150,000 Segway

          3  operating hours without one injury or fatality.  In

          4  comparison, in that same amount of time, there have

          5  been 21,750 pedestrians seriously injured and 250

          6  killed by automobiles, but you're considering

          7  banning Segways?

          8                 Who benefits from Segways?  Segways

          9  can give the elderly and those with disabilities, as

         10  we have just heard, a dignity of movement that prior

         11  to Segway would be impossible to imagine.  In fact,

         12  the medical applications of this device have yet to

         13  be explored, but they are clearly huge.  I have

         14  spent a lot of my time on Segways, working with the

         15  elderly and showing the machine.  The oldest person

         16  I have had on a Segway was 91 years- old.  The

         17  biggest problem I had was getting the machine back.

         18                 Think about it, a walker or a Segway,

         19  crutches or a Segway, a wheelchair or a Segway, but

         20  you want to ban them. Can you at least recognize the

         21  disabled use?  Can you at least recognize the

         22  elderly's right to move around our City with a sense

         23  of dignity and mobility?  Can you at least recognize

         24  how much safer we will all be with older citizens on

         25  Segways instead of behind the wheel of automobiles?
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          2                 How much energy does a Segway use?

          3  Segway uses electricity, which means there's no

          4  tailpipe spewing pollution. But, if you converted

          5  the energy to a gasoline equivalent, this is a

          6  calculation that Citystreets asked Segway to do and

          7  Matt has just talked about it.  It gets 450 miles

          8  per gallon, 450 miles per gallon.  Since we're not

          9  getting leadership on national energy policy that

         10  reduces our nation's reliance on foreign oil from

         11  Washington, where's this leadership going to come

         12  from? From you.  450 miles per gallon.  This changes

         13  things.

         14                 The City has never considered being

         15  in compliance with the Clean Air Act, now it can.

         16  How come we are not talking about this?  Don't you

         17  know that in certain neighborhoods, more than 25

         18  percent of the kids have asthma?  Shame on the

         19  American Lung Association for making their

         20  statement.  It's just shameful. But, still, you're

         21  considering banning them.

         22                 So, if Segways aren't scooters, what

         23  are they? Here's one way one.  At Citystreets, we've

         24  begun to think of a new class of vehicle, one that

         25  isn't completely defined yet, but whose working
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          2  title it urban electric vehicle.  Segways fit neatly

          3  into this classification.  They are clearly vehicles

          4  that are designed for cities, unlike most cars on

          5  our streets that are actually designed for highway

          6  use and are totally out of context in our City.

          7                 What should we do?  Instead of

          8  banning Segways, you should immediately initiate a

          9  four to six month study, and start evaluating them,

         10  so you can begin to learn what Citystreets has an

         11  obvious head start on.  You should talk to us

         12  privately, so we can share observations and

         13  experiences.  We can help you solve the real issues,

         14  which is how to train people to operate Segways

         15  safely and how to integrate them into our City.

         16                 Cities have existed for thousands of

         17  years.  Cars, which have transformed our landscape

         18  have been around for a relatively short time, an

         19  evolutionary blip, if you will.  For years, people

         20  have talked about reducing our reliance on

         21  automobiles because they know our addiction to cars

         22  is unsustainable --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Mr. Silver, would

         24  you please wrap up.

         25                 MR. SILVER:  I'm wrapping up.  Others
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          2  like Citystreets have focused on the public health

          3  threat throws by cars in our City, and now there are

          4  security reasons to reduce our nation's oil use,

          5  which means reducing car use.  Dean Kamen is the

          6  person who invented the world's self- balancing

          7  gyroscopic human transportation device that can

          8  allow us to stop thinking and start planning new

          9  ways to move around our City without relying on

         10  cars.

         11                 History will view this period as the

         12  beginning of a new era, specifically, the end of

         13  civilization's automobile period.  If you think I

         14  have been harsh, I am being kind to how history will

         15  judge you if you actually go through with your ill

         16  conceived plan that lacks vision and leadership and

         17  is against the interest of the people that you swore

         18  to serve.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Just

         20  have a quick question for Mr. Atkins.  How did you

         21  hear about this hearing?

         22                 MR. ATKINS:  I think it was the

         23  Internet.  I had been to the State safety hearing --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, you found out

         25  from the Internet, through our postings?
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          2                 MR. ATKINS:  Yes, and then, but I

          3  went to the State hearing, then I went to the Con Ed

          4  hearing and then I went to the last hearing.  So,

          5  I've been to three of your hearings.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, thank you for

          7  coming to all of our hearings.  Mr. Hovey, how did

          8  you find out about this hearing today?  From Mr.

          9  Atkins, okay.

         10                 MR. ATKINS:  I'm the owners group, so

         11  I let our members now what's going on.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Ms. Krogman, how

         13  did you find out about today's hearing?  Okay.  And,

         14  Mr. Silver.

         15                 MR. SILVER:  Well, in full

         16  disclosure, I'm testifying on behalf of Citystreets,

         17  but I've been asked to cover this as a column for

         18  the New York Sun, so I will be filing a report as

         19  well for the New York Sun, and they asked me to

         20  cover this.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  A clearly

         22  unbiased account.

         23                 MR. SILVER:  It's, absolutely, it's a

         24  column, it's not a news article.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  How did you find
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          2  out about the hearing?

          3                 MR. SILVER:  I just told you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I don't, well,

          5  could you repeat then.  You find out about it --

          6                 MR. SILVER: First of all, it's not

          7  hard to find out about hearings.  I don't really

          8  understand what you're trying to get at.  This is a

          9  public hearing, so the public, it's very easy for

         10  the public, whose interested in transportation

         11  issues, to find out about what's going on in the

         12  City.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I never intimated

         14  in any way. I'm simply asking you to answer a simple

         15  question.  If you don't want to answer the question,

         16  that's fine --

         17                 MR. SILVER: I'm sorry, I thought I

         18  answered the question.  I'm not trying to be

         19  combatative (sic).  I was asked, I had an Op Ed

         20  (phonetic) published on October 7, 2003, which I

         21  encourage everyone in this Council to read, about

         22  Segways in context in an urban environment, and then

         23  I guess, it's come up that this hearing's come up

         24  and I got a call from the publisher of the Op Ed

         25  page, asking me to come to this hearing and cover it
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          2  and --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, then, that's

          4  it --

          5                 MR. SILVER: Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's the answer.

          7  That's not what you said before.  Thank you very

          8  much.  I want to thank the time that the Members of

          9  this panel --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Mr. Chairman,

         11  if I could just state briefly --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, please --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: So the record

         14  is clear, because I know that you want your column

         15  to reflect the facts, Mr. Silver, and not rely on

         16  conjecture or hysteria, that the language in this

         17  bill is quite clear, that it would, in no way, stop

         18  anyone who's using, anyone who has any type of

         19  disability, from using any device to help themselves

         20  in that regard.

         21                 So, making that reference, I think is

         22  really just trying to play on emotions.  And, I

         23  think, secondly, someone who is as informed as you

         24  are, should realize that this hearing is not about

         25  Segways, per se, and you've been here and you've
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          2  heard the problem that we're seeking to address.  It

          3  just so happens that Segway is in the middle of a

          4  battle in Albany and with the Administration that

          5  somehow may be captured in part of this legislation,

          6  and it's something that we're trying to deal with

          7  and address and listen to.

          8                 But, I find, I'm a little offended by

          9  your tone in trying to say that this is a hearing

         10  that seeks to ban Segways, or the future of human

         11  kind, as we know it.  Quite to the opposite.  We're

         12  trying to protect the lives of young children who

         13  find themselves on these scooters that we've been

         14  talking about all morning,  So, thank you very much

         15  for your testimony and we look forward to finding a

         16  way to resolve this.  But, Mr. Hovey, you should

         17  know that certainly, even the bill as it is now

         18  written, would not affect your situation.  Thank

         19  you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Council Member

         21  Vallone.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Yes, thank

         23  you.  I agree wholeheartedly with Council Member

         24  McMahon.  Mr. Silver, he and I worked hours and

         25  hours and weeks on this bill, and we may not have
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          2  500 hours on a Segway, but we have 500 hours

          3  speaking to our communities, and I could tell you

          4  that not one of them has ever mentioned Segway to

          5  me.  They mentioned scooters.  That's what this bill

          6  is about.

          7                 The fact that it is encompasses

          8  Segways also is something that is part of the

          9  purpose of the hearing, so that we can hear

         10  arguments on both sides, and it may or may not

         11  include Segways at the end of the day.  But, the

         12  purpose of this bill was scooters.  We did not sit

         13  around with the intent to ban Segways. We're here

         14  today with open minds, to list to all different

         15  sides and so, when you write the column, which I

         16  think you should probably divulge before you testify

         17  next time, we hope that it states the facts

         18  accurately.

         19                 MR. SILVER:  Well, are you saying

         20  that --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  We need

         22  to move on to the next panel.  We have Steve

         23  Stollman, Joan Jarowski, George Bliss and Robert

         24  Friedrich, and beyond that panel, we will have

         25  Michael Andersson,  Kim Andersson and Rupert
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          2  Cebulav.  Mr. Stollman, please proceed.  Mr.

          3  Stollman.

          4                 MR. STOLLMAN:  I'd first like to read

          5  some testimony and then I'd like to provide some

          6  responses to comments that have been made.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Why don't you just

          8  present us with your thoughts, whether --

          9                 MR. STOLLMAN:  -- Why don't I --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- It be from your

         11  written testimony or your --

         12                 MR. STOLLMAN:  -- Sure --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Verbal testimony

         14   --

         15                 MR. STOLLMAN:  -- You bet --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- We can always

         17  read your written testimony.

         18                 MR. STOLLMAN:  My name is Steve

         19  Stollman.  I'm Founder of the International

         20  Conference on Appropriate Transportation and

         21  Lightwheels.  We've, over the period of 20 years or

         22  more, we've organized various different events and

         23  conferences regarding transportation possibilities

         24  and how they could be realized.

         25                 I have had trouble understanding this
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          2  document. Sex criminals register with the police

          3  department.  If this law were to pass, next would be

          4  bicycles.  All of the raps against these vehicles,

          5  these scooters, that they are getting in the way of

          6  the totally out of urban scale gasoline- fueled

          7  trucks and automobiles apply equally to that other

          8  form of human scale transportation, what you might

          9  soon be calling pedophilia.  You are criminalizing

         10  and demonizing this form, these forms of

         11  transportation, not just one form of transportation.

         12

         13                 The Clean Air Act is still enforced,

         14  mandating efforts to encourage human scale least

         15  polluting alternatives to automobiles.  Most

         16  conspicuous here is the animus against all small

         17  vehicles.  Do you think Hummers belong in congested,

         18  urban spaces?  You do not distinguish between

         19  gentle, 20 mile per hour electric vehicles and

         20  rambunctious 35 mile per hour gas- powered models.

         21  They are worlds apart.

         22                 The legislation seems to be creating

         23  an expanded role for a police department, currently

         24  focused on fighting terrorism and such, in a

         25  seemingly trivial matter.  Wouldn't a stiff penalty
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          2  for not having insurance suffice?  This smacks of

          3  soviet- style regulation.  Why mention sidewalks

          4  when only the experimental Segway is even suggesting

          5  active use of otherwise pedestrian space?

          6                 This effort would be credible if it

          7  involved a City State consumer study of these types

          8  of vehicles and how to ensure their safety and

          9  durability.  That would do everything possible to

         10  encourage the availability and proliferation of the

         11  lightest weight, electric, quietest vehicles

         12  possible through the public transit system and

         13  cooperation of private interest to enhance mobility

         14  for everyone, especially tourists and visitors. It

         15  could pay for itself in no time and this can be a

         16  crucial step in the conversion of street space into

         17  people space.  This is a declaration of surrender to

         18  the past and to the machine, and a declaration of

         19  war on those who still feel that the potential for

         20  dramatic transportation improvements in New York

         21  City is not a long lost cause.

         22                 Now, I'd like to address myself to

         23  some of the comments that were made during this

         24  hearing, which I consider either wrong in fact, or

         25  just plain dumb.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Sure, why don't we

          3  do that after everybody else has had a chance to

          4  testify.

          5                 MR. STOLLMAN:  Well, why don't you,

          6  excuse me, but I still have 25 seconds left.  You

          7  just turned on the clock on my behalf.  So, let me

          8  go through this in a big hurry.  How come you're

          9  expecting the DOT to give you statistics?  Why are

         10  you writing a bill in which you don't have the

         11  statistics yourself?

         12                 Mr. McMahon talks about that we

         13  cannot heat with kerosene.  Then, how come we can

         14  fire our automobiles with gasoline and we're going

         15  to ban electric vehicles?  I mean, this is the most

         16  absurd, and obviously illegal in terms of the

         17  Federal Clean Air Act, a legislation proposal that

         18  I've seen in my life, and I'd like to know

         19  something, why aren't you proposing a piece of

         20  legislation that controls, by requiring insurance or

         21  registration or something else, or banning

         22  completely the use of gasoline- powered scooters by

         23  young people?

         24                 All of the testimony that was given

         25  by you at the beginning of this hearing said, we
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          2  have a terrible problem out here, and it's gas

          3  scooters and kids riding on the sidewalk.  So, pass

          4  a law against kids riding gas scooters on the

          5  sidewalk. What are you doing banning all future

          6  transportation improvements, in terms of making

          7  vehicles lighter and more usable, instead of just

          8  simply banning these kids with their mischievous

          9  illegal behavior?

         10                 This is using what is called a sledge

         11  hammer, when you should be using, if you don't mind

         12  me saying so, one of these fingers.  This is an

         13  absurdity and it's really, and it's frankly an

         14  insult to yourself to have put forth this piece of

         15  legislation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you for your

         17  thoughtful comments.  Joan Jarowski.

         18                 MS. JAROWSKI:  Okay, am I speaking to

         19  only one Council Member now?  I only see one of you

         20  here.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You are speaking to

         22  the City Council.  These are being entered into the

         23  records, as well as being videotaped.

         24                 MS. JAROWSKI:  Thank you very much --

         25                 MS. STOLLMAN:  -- Can I ask why I was
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          2  the only person privileged to have the clock started

          3  while I was talking? Everybody else who has spoken

          4  at this hearing so far, has spoken without a clock

          5  and I was given a clock.  Am I being given some

          6  special consideration?  I'd like to know that,

          7  because I'm kind of honored in a way, in a twisted

          8  way.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, we're happy

         10  that your honored.  Mr. Jarowski, Mrs. Jarowski.

         11                 MS. JAROWSKI:  Okay, I'm here to

         12  speak for modification of the proposal.  But first I

         13  want to say, because I don't want to be harsh to any

         14  of you, but I commend your genuine concern for the

         15  children of the City, who are riding these vehicles

         16  as toys and getting into trouble, and for the

         17  concern of the victims who are being knocked over,

         18  usually the elderly.  I agree with you a thousand

         19  percent on all of that.

         20                 Now, I'd like to read my statement as

         21  an electric scooter user.  I am a 58 year- old

         22  woman, who, along with my husband/physician, uses an

         23  electric scooter instead of a taxi to go at zero

         24  emission back and forth to our medical practice at

         25  14 miles an hour, at a cost of one penny per mile.
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          2                 Charlie and I are responsible

          3  environmentalists, who, for example, take New York

          4  City recycling very seriously, own a hybrid car and

          5  preserve trees, by keeping ourselves off junk mail

          6  lists.  We have saved hundreds of gallons of

          7  gasoline and contribute to cleaner air by these

          8  measures.  We have New York State automobile

          9  driver's licenses and in 40 years, each, of driving,

         10  have never had an accident or accumulated any

         11  points. We are good citizens and fairly typical

         12  users of the electric scooter.

         13                 Introduction Number 98 states,

         14  scooters were originally designed for human power

         15  and low speed operation. Their motorized

         16  counterparts travel up to 40 miles per hour and

         17  cannot be maneuvered safely at these speeds.

         18  Nothing in this statement, however, applies to the

         19  electric version of the motorized scooter.

         20                 Electric scooters typically go at a

         21  maximum speed under 18 miles per hour, per gallon,

         22  per hour, sorry.  By the way, they can't be souped

         23  up beyond 20, I don't believe, so, that's not an

         24  issue either.  No faster than a bicycle, please do

         25  not confuse the electric with the gas model scooter,
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          2  please.

          3                 Introduction 98 also states, the

          4  United States Consumer Product Safety Commission

          5  reported 4,390 emergency room treated injuries

          6  associated with motorized scooters in the year 2000.

          7    39 percent of those injured were under 15 years of

          8  age. This Agency does not distinguish in its reports

          9  the speedy gas model most often used by juveniles

         10  having fun from the slow going electrics used by

         11  adults for transportation.  There is no actual

         12  evidence that electric models, driven by adults,

         13  have caused any harm whatsoever.

         14                 In my discussions with CPSC, they

         15  have agreed that this is a distinction worth making

         16  and have conceded that criteria for data collection

         17  should include this distinction, and I do have some

         18  e- mails for you as back- up.  I have been treating

         19  this issue very seriously for months and have done a

         20  lot of research on this.

         21                 Okay, since the above concerns giving

         22  rise to Introduction 98 seem not to apply to the

         23  electric version of the scooter, we ask the Council

         24  to delete from this bill all prohibitions relating

         25  to the electric scooter.  Instead, we suggest
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          2  guidelines for the safe use of the electric scooter.

          3  Such guidelines might include age limits, the use of

          4  safety equipment, the possession of a driver's

          5  license or City permit, to allow street use only,

          6  and according to the rules of the road for bicycles,

          7  because for all practical purposes, that is what

          8  these machines are, pedal- less bicycles.

          9                 There is one other compelling reason

         10  not to prohibit personal electric transportation, it

         11  is the future, and it is inevitable.  Sympathizing

         12  well with the concerns of victims of scooter abuse,

         13  we suggest -- that's me and my husband, Charlie --

         14  we suggest the proper remedy is regulation, not

         15  prohibition. We ask you, please, and with all due

         16  respect, to resist the momentary pressure to turn

         17  back the clock, and instead, to find a way to step

         18  intelligently into the future.  Thank you for this

         19  hearing.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Ms.

         21  Jarowski.  Mr. Bliss.

         22                 MR. BLISS:  My name is George Bliss.

         23  I'm the founder/operator of the Hub Station and

         24  Pedicabs of New York, currently located in Soho and

         25  the vortex of the daily Holland Tunnel traffic jam.
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          2  Hub Station has served as a marketplace and service

          3  center for alternatives vehicles for over eight

          4  years. In addition to operating the City's largest

          5  bike taxi company, with 35 pedicabs, we have sold

          6  and repaired electric scooters, as well as electric

          7  bicycles for over six years.  We have also provided

          8  exhibits at science fairs of environment and

          9  pedestrian friendly transportation products entering

         10  the market.

         11                 I, personally, am a product developer

         12  in this field and have taught courses on lightweight

         13  vehicle design at both Pratt Institute and Parsons

         14  School of Design.

         15                 Our team and our customers, over the

         16  years, believe the electric scooter products we've

         17  tested and introduced are perfect for cities,

         18  particularly for this City.  It is about time City

         19  government became educated in the utilitarian

         20  virtues they offer City dwellers.  Some folks like

         21  standing while scootering, some like sitting, some

         22  buy them for fun, but most, nine out of ten, need

         23  them for commuting.  Some people have physical

         24  limitations and this is their solutions.  They fold

         25  much smaller than folding bicycles and go right into
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          2  building lobbies and up elevators, onto mass transit

          3  or into cramped apartments with ease, and no

          4  objections.

          5                 These products are, in many respects,

          6  safer than bicycles, for both the operator and for

          7  pedestrians.  They are more likely than bikes to

          8  land you on your feet.  Bicycles, when they spill,

          9  put you on your head, and present less momentum in a

         10  collision.  Furthermore, because they aren't usually

         11  left locked on sidewalks, like bicycles, they reduce

         12  street clutter, as well as traffic congestion.

         13                 In short, who could object to their

         14  arrival in our City.  In our view, they represent

         15  the hope that urban transportation will finally

         16  become sane and civilized.  They're the opposing

         17  principal to the madness of driving larger and

         18  larger SUV's as though City streets were interstate

         19  highways. City traffic is a nightmare the world

         20  over, these products, along with bicycles, are a

         21  dream come true.  Fun, pedestrian friendly,

         22  convenient, inexpensive, odorless, quiet,

         23  complimentary to mass transit.

         24                 The present attempt to demonize them

         25  is a witchhunt against innocence.  We are trying to
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          2  save our City from the rage of the automobile.  Your

          3  prejudice against our use of these products on City

          4  streets, I'm sorry to say, can only result from

          5  ignorance.  It's proof that you're stuck.  You're

          6  stuck in traffic, in a carcentric (phonetic)

          7  paralysis of fear, fear of change, maybe even fear

          8  of freedom.

          9                 You are using the fact that a few

         10  teenagers abuse the noisy gasoline- powered variety

         11  of these scooters as a wedge to drive us from the

         12  solutions at hand.  It's cynical and it's sad.  To

         13  demonize an entire class of vehicle because of an

         14  abhorrent behavior among an especially visible group

         15  of misusers is not only unfair, it's logic is

         16  perverse.  You may as well pass a law to keep

         17  everyone out of parks because some people litter and

         18  make a mess of them.  Let's keep people from

         19  involvement in sports because some athletes abuse

         20  steroids, et cetera.  Deal with the behavior

         21  problem.

         22                 Pass a law that stores can't sell to

         23  anyone under age 18, or that anyone under age, who

         24  operates such a vehicle will have it confiscated,

         25  and by all means, keep them off the sidewalks.  But,
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          2  distinguish between the gasoline and electric

          3  variety in considering regulation.

          4                 California, in fact, treats electric

          5  scooters of this class as bicycles, and there is no

          6  good reason to do otherwise.  Then, get on with the

          7  real task at hand, which is to rescue our public

          8  space by encouraging responsible use of all

          9  environment and pedestrian friendly small vehicles

         10  alternatives on City streets.  We need small vehicle

         11  lanes desperately, and parking stations.

         12                 Our City is in a position to lead the

         13  world, not only by showcasing such vehicles in use,

         14  but by developing and producing these urban

         15  transport options for the growing global market.  If

         16  there is leadership, this can happen here, sooner,

         17  rather than later.  And, let's stop lying about the

         18  real menace, cars that lose control kill people.

         19  Huge trucks turning recklessly crush children and

         20  old people in the crosswalk.  We have to change all

         21  that.  Pericles said it, where there is no vision,

         22  the people perish.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

         24  Friedrich.

         25                 MR. FRIEDRICH:  My name is Robert
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          2  Friedrich.  I happen to be a business owner in

          3  Manhattan, and I also happen to be a constituent of

          4  the Chairman of the Transportation Committee.

          5  Council Member McMahon and Vallone, before, said

          6  that the intent of this bill was not to ban Segways.

          7    I think the Council need to spend a little bit

          8  more time in crafting legislation, because to create

          9  a bill, that's very easy for the Council to do,

         10  really affects many people's lives.

         11                 From everything we've heard here, the

         12  issue, there has to be a distinction between gas and

         13  electric.  Clearly, that distinction has to be made

         14  in any legislation you pass.  I would also say that

         15  the distinction should be made with Segways also. In

         16  addition to that, as the Chairman knows, we have a

         17  problem on Francis Lewis Boulevard in Queens.  There

         18  are teenagers who speed their cars all hours of the

         19  night.  Do we ban automobiles?  No, we ban the

         20  reckless use of those vehicles.  So, to come and

         21  introduce a bill that is so broad, that bans the use

         22  of every electric vehicle or gas vehicle, I just

         23  think it's legislation that has not been crafted

         24  carefully.

         25                 I will say, in my business, I happen
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          2  to use a Segway.  I take it to the bank.  I take it

          3  other places.  I like to walk, but there are some

          4  times where I have to go six or seven blocks, I

          5  prefer using a non- polluting vehicle than hopping

          6  in a cab or using a car.  I could use the bus or the

          7  subway, but sometimes the Segway is a little

          8  quicker.  I just think that the City Council, and

          9  especially the Chairman, needs to spend a little bit

         10  more time in finessing and crafting legislation, so

         11  it actually does what they intend it to do.  Thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Mr.

         14  Friedrich.  I want to thank you for your time.  And,

         15  now I'd like to call the next panel up.  Michael

         16  Andersson, Kim Andersson and Rupert Cebular. We have

         17  also long since been joined by Council Member Andy

         18  McMahon, Andy Lanza, sorry Andy.  Andy Lanza from

         19  Staten Island and Council Member Diana Reyna from

         20  Brooklyn, Brooklyn and Queens, yes.

         21                 MS. ANDERSSON:  Hello, okay.  I just

         22  want to say Michael Andersson had to go to work and

         23  Rupert Cebular thought that a lot of the other

         24  testimonies captures what he wanted to say today, so

         25  he'll sit down.
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          2                 I'm Kim Andersson and I live in

          3  Yorkville, a small neighborhood in the Upper East

          4  Side.  I own a small business there and I also work

          5  part- time at a small business there to supplement

          6  the income.  I'm a mother in this neighborhood and I

          7  support most of the language of Intro. 98.  Like

          8  many of the other people who have testified here

          9  today, I do encourage the Council to re- write the

         10  definition of a motorized scooter to exclude those

         11  that are electric powered.

         12                 I don't have a lot to add to some of

         13  the other testimonies that you heard.  People

         14  covered the important facts, that low speed

         15  electric- powered scooters are safe, they are

         16  emission- free, they tend to be operated by people

         17  who are between the ages of 35 and 55 years- old.  I

         18  know this because I feel like I'm sort of an expert

         19  on electric- powered scooters in New York City

         20  because my part- time job is at a place called New

         21  York City Electric Wheels, and we promote

         22  alternative electric power transportation for New

         23  York City.

         24                 We feel that alternative electric

         25  power transportation improves the quality of life in
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          2  the City, where the noisy, gas counterpart, that

          3  tends to be used by youths who do not have

          4  experience operating motor vehicle on the roads, you

          5  know, take away from the quality of life.

          6                 I have dialed 3- 1- 1 in the middle

          7  of the night many times myself because of these gas-

          8  powered scooters on the streets.  I can only hope

          9  that maybe it's an oversight that the electric-

         10  powered scooter has been lumped in with the gas-

         11  powered scooter, and really, for years, people have

         12  been using electric powered scooters in New York

         13  City.  Famous people, regular people, you know,

         14  commuters, mostly urban commuters like Ms. Jarowski,

         15  who choose to get out of the taxi cab and save that

         16  $15.00 a day.

         17                 It wasn't until the proliferation of

         18  poorly made and very inexpensive gas scooters last

         19  Summer, and then the media jumping on the, you know,

         20  jumping up and paying a lot of attention to the

         21  issue, that the Council even addressed banning the

         22  scooters altogether.  So, I feel like with all the

         23  testimony that you've heard today, maybe, I wish

         24  that, you know, Council Member McMahon and Council

         25  Member Vallone were still here, but I trust they'll
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          2  read the records, that they can go back to the

          3  drawing board on this Introduction and change that

          4  language to exclude electric- powered scooters.

          5  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  I want

          7  to thank everybody for joining us today, this

          8  morning, as well as this afternoon, at today's

          9  hearing of the Transportation Committee.

         10                 It seems like this is, this may be

         11  the first time for many of you to testify here at

         12  City Hall, so I do thank you and commend you for

         13  doing so.  Part of the process here is that we, this

         14  is the first hearing on this bill.

         15                 The reason we do not, we generally do

         16  not vote at the first hearing of a bill is to, so to

         17  allow us time afterwards to carefully listen to and

         18  understand what we hear at the public hearing, such

         19  as today.  So, I think that many of you made very

         20  solid points.

         21                 This is a bill that has been

         22  introduced, generally speaking, before we vote on

         23  bills and pass them, there are significant changes

         24  that are made.  The careful treatment of scooters,

         25  distinguishing the gas versus the electric,
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          2  distinguishing Segways, those are issues that we've

          3  already begun to consider and certainly will take

          4  more to heart now that we've heard all of your

          5  testimony.  In fact, it's something that we

          6  certainly hope that the Administration and the

          7  Department of Transportation will look carefully at

          8  also, because the Administration currently is

          9  opposing adamantly, in Albany, the use of the Segway

         10  in New York City.

         11                 So, once again, I want to thank you

         12  for spending so much time with us.  Please give our

         13  regards to Mr. Cebular and Mr. Andersson, and at

         14  this point, this hearing is adjourned.

         15                 (Meeting adjourned at 12:30 p.m.)

         16                 (Following written testimony was read

         17  into the record)

         18

         19  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

         20  SEGWAYNYNY MEMBERS

         21

         22                 To Transportation Committee Members:

         23  We represent a group of owners of the Segway Human

         24  Transporter (HT) and otherwise concerned citizens in

         25  the greater New York area, and wish to submit for
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          2  your consideration, some information we feel is

          3  relevant in light of the upcoming hearing named

          4  above.

          5                 There have been a small number of

          6  Segways in the New York area for a year now, and we

          7  are eager to work with all relevant agencies and

          8  legislative bodies to make the smoothest possible

          9  introduction of this exciting technology to our

         10  everyday lives.

         11                 We are concerned that such innovative

         12  technology as the Segway, which falls into a

         13  category of its own, has a fair chance to be

         14  evaluated and to realize its full potential in New

         15  York City, and equally concerned that the current

         16  wording of the proposed bills 98, 37 and 86 is

         17  sufficiently broad as to potentially include the

         18  Segway as well.

         19                 Please find some relevant articles

         20  and position papers from various advocacy groups

         21  which, we believe, support our position that this

         22  technology be set apart, and given the chance to be

         23  fully evaluated in the New York City environment.

         24                 We appreciate your consideration in

         25  this matter, and would be happy to meet with you to
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          2  answer any further questions you may have in order

          3  to arrive at a reasoned decision concerning the

          4  future of the Segway HT in New York City.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 12:30 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CHERYL MILLER, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 30th day of March 2004.
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